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Item No: C1020(2) Item 15

Subject: MAYORAL MINUTE: ARTS FORUM
From: The Mayor, Councillor Darcy Byrne
MOTION:

THAT Council writes to the NSW Arts Minister, the NSW Minister for Jobs, Investment,
and Tourism, and the NSW Minister for Planning and Public Spaces requesting the
following actions identified through the Arts Forum that Council convened:

1. That arts infrastructure be included in a Government stimulus plan with a whole
of Sydney focus;

2. State Government funding to assist small to medium enterprises, which have
been unfunded to date;

3. State Government funding to expand the existing arts funding grants, which are
administered by local Councils;

4. Assist with planning and DCP challenges to help with the adaptive use of empty
shopfronts for the arts sector;

5. Provide more State Government funding to multicultural arts; and

6. Work with Councils to develop a Public Art Strategy.

Background

The Mayoral Regional Arts and Creative Forum took place via Zoom on 6 August 2020.

Attendees included Inner West Mayor Darcy Byrne; Jess Scully - Deputy Lord Mayor, City of
Sydney; Simon Fox - Group Manager - Community, Library and Aquatic Services, Burwood
Council; Alicia Talbot - Manager Arts and Cultural Development, City of Blacktown; Stephanie
Kelly - Manager, Place Management, City of Canada Bay; Tanya Goldberg — Executive
Manager — Communications, Culture and Events, Waverley Council.

Some of the issues raised for the arts industry included:

e Support for the arts and creative sector has been less than those in other industries with
similar or lower economic and social contribution to society.

¢ Councils have been trying to support the local artists and creatives while working on their
local recovery plans simultaneously.

e Uncertainty regarding the timeline and process for reopening arts venues is making
planning and investment impossible.

o City of Sydney completed a Community COVID Plan (economy-wide) which showed that
the theatre, live music, festival organisers, etc., suffered a 53% drop in arts operators
within first two weeks of shutdown and they are likely to be last sector to reopen.

e There was interest in creating a Creative Economy Taskforce as an avenue for local
government to approach State Government, so a united voice is more likely to be
considered.

Item 15
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o Would like to see Councils could be provided with money for small grants they could
administer to the local arts and cultural sector that would be welcomed.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.

Item 15
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Item No: C1020(2) Item 16

Subject: MAYORAL MINUTE: KING GEORGE PARK AND WESTCONNEX
From: The Mayor, Councillor Darcy Byrne

MOTION:

THAT Council:

1. Notes the $2.875 million Council received for the compulsory acquisition of
2,285sgm of land at King George Park (See media release below in background);

2. Dedicates this $2.875 million to improving the recreational facilities at King
George Park and the public amenities in the neighbouring streets — Byrne St,
Manning St, Clubb St, Toelle St, Callan St, Springside St, McCleer St and Moodie
St - which have been significantly affected by the construction of WestConnex
Stage 3B;

3. Notes the list of priorities of sporting organisations that use King George Park for
the sporting ground (See background below);

4. Sends a letter from the Mayor to residents of the streets listed above asking for
their priorities for improvements of public amenities in the area, which will be
reported to Council at an Ordinary meeting in October; and

5. Consults with Balmain Little Athletics, Leichhardt Saints and Leichhardt Juniors
Rugby League Club on their priorities and, following this consultation, tables a
list of priority works at King George Park and the streets listed above that could
be funded by the $2.875 million at an Ordinary meeting in November.

Background

On Friday, 18 September | held a meeting with representatives from three sports clubs that
are long-term users of King George Park - Balmain Little Athletics, Leichhardt Saints and
Leichhardt Juniors Rugby League Club.

The clubs had identified number of improvements to the ground that they believed would be
beneficial for all users, including:

¢ Improvement to the quality of the ground’s surface, which would include new turf and
laser levelling

¢ New changerooms are urgently needed, especially for women and girls
¢ Additional storage on-site

e Addressing the possibility of increasing capacity in the car parking at the ground

ltem 16
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Council media release of Monday 24 August 2020

Win for Council and the community in King George
Park negotiations

Transport for NSW (TfNSW) will compensate Inner West Council and the local
community $2.875 million for the compulsory acquisition of 2,285sgm of land at King
George Park.

As well, Council has successfully negotiated that 72% of the acquired land will be returned to
Council by December 2025.

King George Park is one of the Inner West’'s most popular sporting grounds used throughout
the sporting year by thousands of local football juniors.

The Park is part of a wider recreational Bay Run precinct, patronised by huge numbers of
people each day.

In January 2020, TINSW compulsorily acquired the land to be used for the WestConnex M4-
M5 Link project.

TINSW also acquired a construction lease of 800sgm in the same area. This will also be
eventually returned to Council.

As well as successfully seeking adequate compensation, Council negotiated that TINSW
reinstate the land to the pre-acquisition condition.

TINSW will also pay all of Council’s legal and other costs associated with the litigation.
“We’ve fought hard to win compensation for the community and this funding will go straight
back into the neighbourhood, said Inner West Mayor Darcy Byrne.

“The impacts from WestConnex on residents around King George Park have been
horrendous, so improving their quality of life is the priority now.”

Inner West Council has one of the lowest proportions of public open space per person in
Sydney.

Council’s legal experts had always argued that every metre of public open space is highly
valuable and that the amount of compensation to be paid to Council should reflect that value
rather than the nominal amount that TINSW’s experts recommended.

The State Government’s WestConnex project has disproportionately disadvantaged Inner
West residents through compulsory acquisitions, destruction of neighbourhoods, pollution,
noise, dust, fumes and odour.

Council encourages all residents to register justifiable complaints.

All registered complaints are required to be investigated.

For more information about the WestConnex project and Council’s actions to advocate for
residents and mitigate the impacts of construction and delivery of the WestConnex project, go
to www.innerwest.nsw.gov.au/WestConnex

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.

ltem 16


https://www.innerwest.nsw.gov.au/develop/works-and-projects/state-government-projects/westconnex/report-issues-with-westconnex
http://www.innerwest.nsw.gov.au/WestConnex

IWER WEST 27 Getober 202

Item No: C1020(2) Item 17

Subject: MAYORAL MINUTE: WESTS TIGERS LEISURE
From: The Mayor, Councillor Darcy Byrne

MOTION:

THAT Council:

1. Notes the correspondence from Justin Pascoe, CEO of Wests Tigers Rugby
League Club (See Attachment 1); and

2. Convenes a meeting with representatives of Wests Tigers Leisure - a joint
venture between Wests Tigers Rugby League and Belgravia Leisure - to discuss
options for collaboration in Council’s recreational centres, which is to be
reported back at an Ordinary Council meeting in December.

ATTACHMENTS
1.0  Correspondence from Wests Tigers CEO to the Mayor

ltem 17
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oftus Street ncord NSW 2137
PC 9 yrth Strathfield NS
PH: 02 87413300 FAX: 02 9715 6574
WWW.WESTSTIGERS.COM.AU

5 August 2020

Mayor, Clr Darcy Byrne
Email. darcy byrne@innerwest.nsw.gov.au

Dear Darcy,

Wests Tigers Leisure, a joint venture between Wests Tigers Rugby League and Belgravia
Leisure would like to work with Inner Wests Council on initiatives aimed at bringing the skill
sets, knowledge, and branding of Wests Tigers Leisure into your community through your
recreational centers in the Inner -West.

We have entered into partnership with Belgravia Leisure to expand our community program
initiatives in the area of health and wellbeing. As you are aware Belgravia Leisure operate
the Annette Kellerman Aquatic Centre on behalf of Council and they deliver highly
successful Exercise Physiology and Telehealth services to the Marrickville community.

We have followed with interest the progress of the facility development at Ashfield
Aquatic Centre and we believe that Councils commitment to the health of the Inner West
community aligns with our community program model that is delivering tangible outcomes
in the areas where we are established.

We note that Inner West Council recently went to market to seek external providers of
Exercise Physiology services and a range of other allied health services for the Leichhardt
Aquatic Centre. We believe that with the onset of Covid 19 the expression of interest
project was suspended temporarily.

We would like to enter into discussions with Council on how we could package a range of
services that could be deployed by West Tigers within your aquatic and leisure facilities
across the Inner West. | have included below, some community initiatives above and
beyond the Exercise Physiology services that we would like to also propose for
consideration.

pRoOUD sPONSORS | brydens x =
OF WESTS TIGERS yu-m-\ m ISCP
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oftus Street ncord NSW 2137
PO B( €9, North Strath SW 2137
PH: 02 87413300 FAX: 02 97156574
WWW.WESTSTIGERS.COM.AU

Wests Tigers Proposed Community Initiatives

e Utilise Inner West council facilities as holiday clinic locations for the local community
—these could be promoted as an additional benefit on membership packages.
Typically these clinics are targeted towards kids ages 5-12 and run each school
holiday period except for the Christmas break.

* NRL League stars after school program. League Stars is run before or after school for
primary school aged children over 4 -6 weeks. The program is suitable for all abilities
with the focus on practicing fundamental movement skills and having a blast with
friends.

e KariIndigenous pathways camp - pending availability and timing of 2021 camp,
various activities can be moved from HQ to leisure centres e.g. gym, recovery
(including pool, spa, sauna).

e Activation at Ashfield Aquatic opening day (WT engagement, membership, merch
present — spring 2020)

Future initiatives:
e Use gym facilities for future men’s and women’s health & wellbeing program
e Wests Tigers promote Australian kids water safety. “Drowning continues to be one of the
biggest killers of Australian children. Every year a number of children are killed and hundreds
more are rescued from near drowning situations.” https://kidsafe.com.au/statistics-2/

Kind Regards

Justin Pascoe
CEO Wests Tigers Rugby League Club

pRouD sponsors | brydens ] v
OF WESTS TIGERS yu--vm jm ISCD
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Item No: C1020(2) Item 18

Subject: MAYORAL MINUTE: WESTCONNEX INDEPENDENT PROPERTY IMPACT
ASSESSMENT PANEL

From: The Mayor, Councillor Darcy Byrne

MOTION:

THAT Council:

1. Notes the motion establishing a Council service to provide independent
dilapidation reports for local property owners affected by tunnelling and
construction for the WestConnex project, which was adopted at the 24 April 2018
Ordinary meeting;

2. Notes the advice provided by Council officers that the dilapidation service has
been discontinued and that Council has written to Transport for NSW requesting
that a Council representative be an observer on its Independent Property Impact
Assessment Panel (See below and Attachment 1);

3. Provides a report on which Council representative is observing the panel’s
operation, how frequently it has met and what their assessment is about the
fairness and effectiveness of the panel process, which is to be reported to the
next Ordinary Council meeting; and

4. Notes Council’s acceptance of Sat Scan Pty Ltd’s offer for the provision of high-
level radar-based satellite imagery for areas along the WestConnex toll road
route that fall within the Local Government Area for Inner West Council at the 25
August Council meeting.

Background

On 28 July 2020, in response to an inquiry about proposed WestConnex blasting in
Annandale, | received advice from Council officers (see below) that Council’s independent
dilapidation reports for property owners affected by tunneling and construction for
WestConnex had been discontinued.

“Council no longer offers the service. Please see attached memo [Briefing Note to Councillors
on 17 December 2019] that addresses this issue.”

ATTACHMENTS
1.0  Briefing Note to Councillors on 17 December 2019

10
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#§ INNER WEST COUNCIL

o ~ COUNCILLOR BRIEFING NOTE

To: All Councillors

From: Michael Deegan, Chief Executive Officer
Date: 17 December 2019

Subject:  WestConnex Property Condition Reporting Service

The main reason for Council previously providing the independent service was an expressed
lack of trust by some community members in the WestConnex property condition disputes
process. As disputes were at that time handled solely by the contractor, it was felt that the
process was biased and a more independent appeals process was needed.

In response to the community concerns, Transport for NSW (TNSW, formerly RMS)
improved the process when Stage 3 was approved in April 2019 by establishing an
Independent Property Impact Assessment Panel. The panel, comprising geotechnical and
engineering experts independent of the contractor, has responsibility for reviewing the
contractor's reports, resolving property damage disputes and establishing noise and
vibration monitoring requirements.

| have written to Transport for NSW requesting that a Council representative observe the
panel’'s operation.

Attachments: WestConnex: Property condition survey factsheet

P.O. Box 14 Petersham 2049 P (02) 9392 5000 @ E council@innerwest.nsw.gov.au
Customer Service Centres  Petersham 2-14 Fisher Street  Leichhardt 7-15 Wetherill Street  Ashfield 260 Liverpool Road

11
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M4-MS5 Link Tunnels
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Property condition survey factsheet | 2019
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M4-MS5 Link Tunnels Property condition survey factsheet | 2019

.’

Who is eligible for a property condition survey?
While structural or cosmetic damage to a property from
tunnel conatruction is extremely untikely, a free property
condition survey is offered to ehgible properties within S0
meters of an M4-MS tunnel alignment or construction site

Construction of the M4-M5 Tunnels will be careed our
progressively between Habwrlield and St Peters. Betore
demohition, construction or tunnelfing starts i your area
the LSBJV community refations team will contact eligivle
properties to offer a property condition survey

Why do | need a property condition survey?

The property condition survey daocuments the existing

condition of builldings and structures on a property before

the start of work in your area. It 15 a record for comparsoen
if you have any concerns about damage to your propérty

which you feol may have been because of our work

What does the property condition survey involve?
The survay 15 dong by a suitably guaklified mspector and
involves taking photographs of any visibie damage or
defect within buildings and structures on a property, it will
also include outside structures such as sheds, dnvaways,

swimmmng pools, fences and retaining wails

A property inspection will be done during dayfight hours

and will provide an accurate rpcord of the current interior

and extarigr condition of buildings and structures

How do | arrange a property condition survey?
arts in your area the LSBJV

Before construction
community refations team will contact ehaibie properties

1o ofter freo surveys

if you have not Been contacted and you believe your

property may be eligibhle please contact us-on 1800 660
248 and ask to talk to the M4 - MS Link Tunnels project.
How long will the property condition survey take?
An inspection can take two (o thres hours to complele

depending on the size and condition of a property

Do | need to pay for the survey?

There is no-cost Lo property ownors for the survey repo

and once completed an electronic and printed copy o

report will be provided free of charge

Will the survey report be confidential?

e survey report 15 the property of LSBJIV and will be
kept confidential belween us and Sydney Matorway
Corporation. However, f you make a proparty damage
claim we will need to give the report to assessors as part

of the investigation process.

What if | do not agree with the survey?

If you believe the survey report does not accuratel
y rep Yy

describe the condition of your property, please contact

the LSBJV community refations team

What do | do if my property is damaged?

Please contact the LSBJV community relations team if you

~

think that your property has been dar

be guided through the property damage

When will the project team repair the damage?
Generally, repairs to damage caused by the project wouid
take place after completion of construction work and
within three months of completion of post construction
SUrveys, uniess an emergency stualion ases or ther i1s &
safely concern

if the damage is found to be as a result of construction.
repairs will be carried out at no Cost 1O the propety

owner,

Who can | speak to if | have a dispute about a -T

property condition survey?

A Froperty Impact Assessmoant Panel whechis ©

P

sen estabhsh

e M4-M5

gectechnical and engmeering exports b

by Roads and Mariime and is independent of &
Tunneds project.

he panel s respansibbe for mdependentty reviewing

property condition surveys and rasolution of any property

damage disoutes. Property owners and/ or Roads and

Mantime can refer disputes to the panet for resolution

1800 660 248

infoamd-mSlinktunnels,.com.au

westconnex.com.au
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Item No: C1020(2) Item 19

Subject: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019/20

Prepared By:  Daryl Jackson - Chief Financial Officer

Authorised By: Elizabeth Richardson - Acting Chief Executive Officer

RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council:
1. Receives and note the report; and

2. Endorse the Financial Statements to be placed on public exhibition with a view of
tabling the final report at the November 2020 Council meeting.

DISCUSSION

Council is required to prepare Financial Statements in accordance with the Local Government
Act and Regulations, Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Australian
Accounting Standards. At its August meeting, Council resolved to release its statements for
audit. The financial reporting period for the 2019/20 Financial Statements is 1July 2019 to 30
June 2020.

The 2019/20 Financial Statements are required (by legislation) to be endorsed by Council and
then placed on public exhibition.

Income Statement and Balance Sheet.

Key points to note are:

o Council’s Income Statement for the year discloses that the Net Operating Result from
Continuing Operations was a surplus of $82.0m in contrast to an original budget
surplus of $32.4m.

e Council’s surplus of $82.0m is largely attributed to the gain on the Sale of Investment

Land (Tempe Land) of $49.4m. The total proceeds from the sale of Tempe Land

received from Transport for NSW have been placed in a restricted reserve to be used for

the purchase of a similar investment.

e This result includes lost income from the impact of COVID-19 ($16.2m) mainly driven by

reduced User Fees from Hall Hire, Sportsfields, LPAC and Child Care Centres.
e Efficiency Savings of $18.3m were realised.

e By removing the $49.4m gain from the sale of Tempe lands, and the $11 million surplus
in Resource Recovery (because it is restricted for use on that service only), Council’s

‘normalised’ result is a deficit of $14.5 million.

14
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Analysis of 2019/20 Financial Result

Full Year Normalised

Financial Sale of Tempe || Normalised Resource ) - —
1 2 3 o | Result(Excluding || BusinessAs | Efficiency covID-19
Statements Land Result Recovery 5 . 6
Resource Recovery) Usual Savings Impact
($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Total Income 270,945 49,388 221,557 41,401 180,156 193,725 2,582 (16,151)
Total Expense 241,581 241,581 30,610 210,971 225,221 (15,694) 1,438
Total Surplus/(Deficit) before Funding 29,365 49,388 (20,024) 10,791 (30,815) (31,502) 18,276 (17,589)
Operating Grants & Contributions
Operating Grants 17,095 17,095 801 16,294 12,531 3,763
Total Surplus/(Deficit) after Operating Grants 46,460 49,388 (2,929) 11,592 (14,521) (18,971) 18,276 (13,826)

Keys

1. Financial Statements - audited (formal) set of accounts produced and lodged with OLG.

2. Profit on Sale of Investment (Tempe) Land sold to Transport for NSW. These funds with the balance of the sale amount have been restricted for the purchase of an investment property to provide the same/similar rental income.

3. Normalised Result - this reflects our trading result after excluding the sale of Temple Land.

4. Resource Recovery - managed as a separate unit. Income collected can only be used on this service to offset the operating expenditure and capital program.

5. Full Year Normalised Excluding Resource Recovery - this is the trading result. It includes the Achieved Efficiency Savings and the Impact of COVID-19.

6. COVID-191is better than forecasted. This is due to the State and NSW Grants received late in June for Child Care. This amount was an unknown positive fact.

Council’'s Balance Sheet discloses Net Assets of $2.46 billion, primarily made up of
Infrastructure related assets of $2.22 billion. A breakdown of infrastructure assets can be found
in the capital schedule known as Note 10(a).

Council’s cash position sees it hold $321.0m in cash and investments. The following is a
breakdown by Reserve —

Reserve Amount (SM)
Externally Restricted - S94 Developer Contributions S77
Externally Restricted - Unexpected Grants S8
Domestic Waste $29
Externally Restricted - Other Externally Restricted S11
Internally Restricted - Employee Leave Entitlement S16
Internally Restricted - Deposit and Bonds S18
Internally Restricted - Investment Property Reserve S81
Internally Restricted - Other S40
Operating Funds Already Committed S41
Total $321

As part of this process, Council has funded its Employee Leave Entitlement at 48% of the
estimated provision. (Previously funded at approximately 100% of the total Employee Leave

Entitlement).

15
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Local Government Industry Indicators

The Local Government indicators (summarised below) are determined by in the Code of
Accounting Practice. The indicators allow for inter council comparisons to be consistently made
across the local government sector. The indicators are as follows —

ltem 19

Operating Performance Ratio
The purpose of the Operating Performance Ratio is to measure Council’s achievement of
containing operating expenses with operating revenue.

Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark
% ‘000 2020 2020 2019 2018
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding
capital grants and confributions less operating
expenses 931 0.38% 0.46% 3.24% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue excluding 242,513

capital grants and contributions

! Excludes fair value increments on investment properties, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on

receivables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes
pensioner rate subsidies

I Excludes impairmentrevaluation decrements of IPPE, fair value decrements on investment properties, net loss on disposal of assets

and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method

Council’s Operating Performance Ratio was 0.38% which is better than the benchmark of zero.
This was a reduction based on last year’s ratio of 0.46%.

Own Source Operating Revenue Ratio
The purpose of this ratio is to measure fiscal flexibility. The ratio highlights the degree of
reliance on external funding sources such as operating grants & contributions.

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

Total continuing operating revenue excluding all
grants and contributions 1 225417  81.08% B7.01% 88.83% =60.00%

Total continuing operating revenue ! 278,002

I Excludes fair value increments on invesiment properties, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on

receivables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes
pensioner rate subsidies

Council’'s Own Source Operating Revenue Ratio is better than the benchmark of 60% which
means that it has low reliance on grants to fund operating expenditure. This ratio has decreased
in comparison to the 18/19 result as Council received lower State Government grants in the
19/20 financial year compared to the previous financial year.

Unrestricted Current Ratio
The purpose of this ratio is to assess the adequacy of working capital and its ability to satisfy
obligations in the short term for the unrestricted activities of Council.

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Current assets less all external restrictions 224,881

5.68x 3.04x 3.72% =1.50x

Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities 39.561

16
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Council’s Unrestricted Current Ratio is better than the benchmark of >1.5x. This benchmark will
be used in the development in Council’s Long-term Financial Plan to ensure that Council is
financially sustainable and able to meet its ongoing short-term financial obligations (payroll and
creditors).

ltem 19

Debt Service Coverage Ratio
This ratio measures the availability of operating cash to service debt including interest, principle
and lease payments.

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest
and depreciation/impairment/amortisation 30,627

Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 5,042
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)

6.07x 5.84x B.61x =2.00x

(1} Excludes fair value increments on investment properties, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on
receivables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes
pensioner rate subsidies

Council’s Debt Service Ratio is better than the benchmark of >2x and is capable of servicing its
existing loan obligations as they are secured against rates income and factored into the budget.

Rates, Annual Charges, Interest and Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage
The ratio helps assess the impact of uncollected rates and annual charges on Council’s liquidity
and the adequacy of recovery efforts.

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 8,651
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 170,388

5.08% 4.48% 3.92% <5.00%

Council’s Outstanding Rates and Annual Charges is worse than the benchmark of <5%. This is
mainly driven by reduced debit collection under the COVID-19 directive not to lodge outstanding
debt with the debt collection agency as well as no debt recovery action is taken against eligible
pensioners.

Cash Expense Cover Ratio
This liquidity ratio indicates the number of months a Council can continue paying for its
immediate expenses without additional cash inflow.

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all
term deposits 241,546 11.53 742 8.05 >3.00

Monthly payments from cash flow of operating 20,951 mths mths mths mths
and financing activities

Council’'s Cash Expense Cover Ratio is better than the benchmark of >3 months. However, this
will reduce once investment land has been purchased to replace the Tempe Land sold to
Transport of NSW. This indicator will also be impacted by the COVID-19 Rates Financial
Hardship Deferral Program in place depending on the ratepayer’s ability to repay their
outstanding balances in line with their individual Repayment Agreement.

This will continue to be monitored throughout the 2020/21 financial year and in Council’'s Long
Term Financial Plan.
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Council Infrastructure Industry Indicators

Council’s Infrastructure assets indicators (found in Special Schedules — Report on Infrastructure
Assets) as a summary of Council’s infrastructure conditions for the financial year. This Special
Schedule is not audited by the Audit Office in 2019/20.

Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark

$ '000 2020 2020 2019 2018
Infrastructure asset performance
indicators (consolidated)
Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio °
Asset renewals * 7,493 .

0b% 166.21% 64.09% >=100.00%
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 21,684 IA50% ’ ’ g
Infrastructure backlog ratio *
Estimated cost to bring assets to a safisfactory
standard 140,434  9.62% 9.29% 10.27% <2.00%
Net camrying amount of infrastructure assets 1,460,546
Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 38,159 _

J7% 97.65% 78.33% >100.00%
Required asset maintenance 38,633 e .
Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level set by Council 140,434 7.11% 7.35% 3.78%
Gross replacement cost 1,974,348

") All asset performance indicators are calculated using classes identified in the previous table.
") Excludes Work In Progress (WIiP)

121 Asset renewals represent the replacement andfor refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance as cpposed to
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.

A summary of the indicators show that Council needs to continue to spend money on renewals
at a rate as assets continue to depreciate but still has a backlog of approximately $140m that
needs to be addressed. Working funds have been allocated over the Long Term Financial Plan
to address part of this backlog. However, the infrastructure backlog of $140m exceeds the total
available working funds for Council to reduce the backlog below the benchmark of <2%. The
renewal ratio of 34.56% is expected to be back to well above benchmark for the 20/21 Financial
year as significant asset expenditure on the Ashfield Aquatic Centre, Dawn Fraser Baths and
Haberfield Library is finalised.

This indicator will be reviewed on an ongoing basis as a part of the Long Term Financial Plan
and Asset Management Plans process. If we continue to have an operating deficit, the asset
renewal backlog will not be reduced.

Next Steps

To ensure compliance with legislation the following steps need to occur:

- Council endorses the financial reports and signs the accounts (31 October 2020);

- Council receives the Audit report from the Audit Office to be incorporated in the Financial
Statements and then submitted to the Office of Local Government by 31 October 2020;
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- Council places its Financial Statements on public exhibition for public comment;

- Council endorses the final report in November 2020, noting any comments from the
public exhibition period.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no net financial implications of this report. It is noted that general funds have been
allocated to fund Council’s infrastructure shortfall over the Council’'s Long-Term Financial
Plans.

The Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee have had a briefing with Audit Office and Council
officers to discuss the conduct of the audit and Council’s financial position.

ATTACHMENTS

1.0 Draft 2019/20 Inner West Council Financial Statements
2.1  Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Minutes 21 October 2020
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Overview
Inner West Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at:

2-14 Fisher Street
Petersham NSW 2049

Council's guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

* principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by counci,

* principles to be applied when making decisions,

« principles of community participation,

» principles of sound financial management, and

» principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.
A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www.innerwest.nsw.gov.au

Page 2 of 79
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General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Introduction

Each year, individual Local Governments across NSW are required to present a set of audited financial statements to their
councl and community.

What you will find in the Statements

The financial statements set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of Cound for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020.

The format of the financial statements is standard across all NSW Councils and complies with both the accounting and reporting
requirements of Australian Accounting Standards and requirements as set down by the Office of Local Government.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements must be certified by senior staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Council's financial results for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council - ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements,

About the Primary Financial Statements

The financial statements incorporate five "primary” financial statements:

1. The Income Statement

Summarises Coundll's financial performance for the year, listing all income and expenses. This statement also displays
Council's criginal adopted budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair value of Council's Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Coundil's financial position indicating its assets, Eabilities and “net wealth™.

4, The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council's "net wealth®.

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and where it was spent. This statement also displays Council's original adopted
budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.
About the Notes to the Financial Statements
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater detail and additional information on the five primary financial statements.
About the Auditor's Reports
Coundil's financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office,
in NSW the auditor provides 2 audit repons:
1. an opinion on whether the financial statements present fairly the Council's financial performance and position, and
2. their cbservations on the conduct of the audit, including commentary on the Council's financial performance and finandal
position.
Who uses the Financial Statements?

The financial statements are publicly available documents and must be presented at a Council meeting between seven days
and five weeks after the date of the audit report.

The public can make submissions to Council up 1o seven days subsequent to the public presentation of the financial statements.

Coundil is required to forward an audited set of financial statements to the Office of Local Government.

Page 3 of 79
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General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
* the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,
« the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

» the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and bellef, these statements:
+ present fairdy the Council's operating result and financial position for the year
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 27 October 2020.

Darcy Byme Victor Macri

Mayor Deputy Mayor

27 October 2020 27 Octcber 2020
Elizabeth Richardson Daryt Jackson

Acting General Manager Chief Financial Officer
27 October 2020 27 October 2020

Page 4 of 79
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2020 $ 000 cre 2020 2019
Income from continuing operations
162,638 Rates and annual charges 162,634 159,297
45948 User charges and fees % 32693 42852
26,291  Other revenues 18,019 21,010
10,620 Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 17,096 173
36,819 Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes d .3 35489 23446
5277 Interest and investment income 4 5,209 6,508
— Net gains from the disposal of assets 45215 -
- Fair value increment on investment properties 11 - 449
-~ Rental income 13e 7.077 5999
_  Net share of interests in joint ventures and asscciates 19 101 144
using the equity method
287,593 Total income from continuing operations 323,533 271,436
Expenses from continuing operations
121,675 Employee benefits and on-costs A 115,727 119497
1,969 Borrowing costs = 425 620
64,173  Matenals and contracts 5 63,859 65,135
33,080 Depreciation and amortisation S 29271 26.5%4
34,200 Other expenses e 32,300 34421
70 Netlosses from the disposal of assets 6 - 8,282
255,167 Total expenses from continuing operations 241,582 254 549
32,426 Operating result from continuing operations 81,951 16,887
32,426 Net operating result for the year 81,951 16,887
32,426 Net operating result attributable to council 81,851 16,887
(4,393) Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions 46,462 (6,559)

provided for capital purposes

The Coundll has not restated comparatives when initialty applying AASB 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Enfilies, AASB 15 Rewenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative informalion has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations

The above Income Statement should be read in conjuncion with the accomparnying noles
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2020
$ 000 tase 2020 2019
Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) 81,951 16,887

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

Gain (loss) on revaksation of IPPSE (3 - 14,856
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating

resuit - 14896
Total other comprehensive income for the year - 14,896
Total comprehensive income for the year 81,951 31,783
Total comprehensive income attributable to Councl 81,951 31,783

The Councdl has not restated comparatives when initially applymg AASE 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Ensities, AASE 15 Revenus from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Inferpratations

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in congunclion with the accompanying nodes,

Page 6 of 79
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Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2020
$ 000 » 2020 2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 763) 106,546 23,798
investments 7®) 130,800 118,330
Receivables 24,795 47578
Inventories Y 193 180
Contract assets 1 1,260 -
Other 2659 3,291
Total current assets 266,253 193,177
Non-current assets
Investments ) 83,691 79,683
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 106 2,216,107 2,156,465
Investment propesty 1 - 28489
Intangible Assets 12 9104 1,397
Right of use assets 14a 354 -
Investments accounted for using the equity method 18 3164 3,637
Total non-current assets 2,312,420 2,269 671
Total assets 2578873 2,462,848
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 1% 31,236 35,858
Contract liabilities 135 3998 4267
Lease liabilities 140 191 -
Borrowings 15 3762 3,683
Provisions i 31,883 32433
Total current liabilities 71,070 76,281
Non-current liabilities
Contract iabiliies 1% 4174 ~
Lease liabilties 140 176 -
Bormrowings 40,897 5416
Provisions 16 ) 1498 2,009
Total non-current liabilities 46,740 7,425
Total liabilities 117,810 83,706
Net assets 2,460,863 2,379,142
EQUITY
Accumuiated surplus 2,264,658 2,182,843
Revaluation reserves 196205 196,299
Council equity interest 2,460,863 2,379,142
Total equity 2,460,863 2,379,142

The Counall has not resiated comparalives when instially applying AASB 1058 income of Nat-for-Profit Entlies, AASE 15 Revenue from
Contracts wath Customers and AASB 16 Leases The comparative information has been prepared under AASS 111 Construction

Contradls, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Confributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations

The above Staternent of Financial Position should be read in conpunchion with the accompanying notes.
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27 October 2020
Inner West Council
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2020
as at 30/06/20
IPP&E
Accumulated revaluation
$ 000 surplus reserve
Opening balance 2182843 196,299
Changes due to AASB 1058 and AASB 15 adoption (Z230) -
Restated opening balance 2182613 196209
Net operating result for the year 81,951 -
Other comprehensive income
- Gain (l058) on revaluation of IPP&E . -
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 81,851 -
Transfors between equiy items o4 (94)

Equity — balance at end of the reporting period

2264658  196.205

Total
Accumulated
oqully surplus
2379142 2,165,956
(230) -

2378912 2,165,956

81,951 16,887
81,951 16,887
2,460.863 2,182,843

Financial Statements 2020

as at 30/06/19
IPP&E
revaluation m
reserve

181,403 2347 359

181403 2347359

- 16,887
14,896 14,896
14 896 14,896

14,896 31,783

196299 2,379,142

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entitles, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative
information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction Conlracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Stalement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Inner West Council
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Original
unaudited
budget
2020 S W (ohes
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
162,638 Rates and annual charges
45948 User charges and fees
5277 Investment and interest revenue received
47,439  Grants and contributions
-~ Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received
26,291 Other
Payments:
(121,675) Employee benefits and on-costs
(64,173) Materials and contracts
(1,969) Bormowing costs
(34,200)  Other
Net cash provided (or used in) operating e
65,576 activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
271,859  Sale of investment securities
-~ Sale of investment property
(70) Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Payments:
(223,320) Purchase of investment securities
(111,049) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
__~  Purchase of intangible assets
(62,580) Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Recelpts:
-~ Proceeds from borowings and advances
Payments:
(5.066) Repayment of borrowings and advances
—  Lease liabiities (principal repayments)
(5,066) Netcash flow provided (used in) financing activities
(2,070) Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
41,023 Plus: cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 18a
38,953 Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 123
165,703  plus: Investments on hand — end of year ®)
204,656 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments

Financial Statements 2020
Actual Actual
2020 2018
160,582 158,625
34321 46,111
6,493 4826
42579 32454
1,240 2356
53,349 36,387
(116,104) (114,322)
(79,955) (67,362)
(127) (626)
(50.614) (38,010)
51,764 60,439
212400 162,017
73168 -
1,466 2390
(228,663) (155,551)
(54,460) (52,199)
(8,357) (1,896)
(4,446) (45,239)
40,047 -
(4.487) {4,237)
(130) s
35,430 (4,237)
82,748 10,963
23798 12835
106,546 23,798
214491 198,013
321,037 221,811

The Councd has not restated comparatives when imitially applying AASB 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Entties, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Inferpretations

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be réad in congunction with the accompanying notes
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Contents of the Notes accompanying the General Purpose Financial Statements

Note

1
2(a)
2(b)

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28(a)

28(v)

Details

Basis of preparation

Council functions/activities - financial information
Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Revenue from continuing operations

Interest and investment income

Expenses from continuing operations

Gain or loss from disposal of assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments
Receivables

Inventories and other assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Intangible assets

Contract assets and liabilities

Leases

Payables and borrowings

Provisions

Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies, changes in
accounfing estimates and errors

Statement of cash flow information
Interests in other entities

Commitments

Contingencies

Financial risk management

Material budget variations

Fair Value Measurement

Related party disclosures

Events occurring after the reporting date
Statement of developer contributions
Statement of performance measures - consolidated results

Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 27 October 2020. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Council to amend the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1983 (NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Coundil is a not for-profit entity.
The financial statements are presented in Austraban dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand doliars,

The Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory iliness that was declared a world-wide pandemic by the World Health
Organisation in March 2020. COVID-19 has had a significant effect on local and global economies, and Council has not been
isolated from the direct and indirect effects of the virus,

Coundil has considered the impacts from the 2020 COVID-18 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements.
Although the pandemic had a widespread effect on slowing down economy around the world, Council notes that as at the date
of the issue of the 1920 financial statements, it is hard to predict any significant future implications on Council's business.

To determine the potential impacts of the pandemic on the financial statements, Council has performed an analysis of the
following categories:

» Fair value of property, plant and equipment (PPE) - Level 3.
» Impaiment of non-financial assets

» Financial instruments

+ Expected credit losses (ECLs)

» Events after the reporting period

+ Contingent assets & liabilities and commitment

Specific disclosures have been documented in the notes to the financial statements in recognition of the impacts (financial
and otherwise) of the global pandemic.

Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts disclosed in the financial statements are actual amounts. Specific budgetary amounts
have been included for comparative analysis (to actuals) in the following reports and notes:

* Income statement
« Statement of cash flows
* Note 23 — Material budget variations

and are dearly marked.

(a) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and kabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment
property.

(b) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of finandial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting polices.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed o be reasonable under
the circumstances.

continued on next page Page 110l 79
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Coundl makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabdities within the next financial year include:

(i) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - refer Note 10 and 24.
(i) employee benefit provisions — refer Note 16,

Significant judgements in applying the council's accounting policies

(i) impairment of receivables

Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of 3 number of its receivables — refer Note 8 and 22
Monies and other assets received by Council

{a) The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409 1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and propesty received
by Council is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust Fund.

Cash and other assets of the following entities have been included as part of the Consclidated Fund:

= General purpose operations
« Other - ClvicRisk Metro, and
Other - CivicRisk Mutual Pools

(b} The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Govemment Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and other assets received by the Council in Trust which must be
applied only for the purposes of, or in accordance with the trusts relating to those monies. Trust monies and other assels
subject to Council's control have been included in these reports.

Trust monies and property hekd by Council but not subject to the control of Council have been exduded from these reports.
A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the Council office by any person free
of charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated ndusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The netamountof GST recoverable
from, or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable 0, the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services

Council is supported by volunteer services in its community support programs - specifically individual social support
services, and meals on wheels. All volunteers are reimbursed for travel expenses, and it is the view of council that all cther
volunteer services are not material and therefore has not been recognised in the income statement.

continued on next page Page 120l 79
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

New accounting standards and interpretations issued not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations (ie. pronouncemaents) have been published by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting period.

These standards include:

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors

AASB 2018-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 1059

AASB 2019-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Impimentation of AASB 1059

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operative dates,

As at the date of authorisation of these financial staterments Council does not consider that any of these new {and still to be
applied) standards and interpretations are likely to have a material impact on the Council's future financial statements, financial
position, financial performance or cash flows.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year Council adopted the following accounting standards and interpretations (as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from 1 July 2018;

= AASB 16 Leases
= AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and associated amending standards.
«  AASB 1058 income of Not-for-profit entities

Further information on the newly adopted standards which had a material impact on Coundil's reported financial position,
financial performance andor associated finandal statement disclosures can be found at Note 17.

Page 130l 79
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(a). Council functions/activities — financial information

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities.
Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Grants included
income from Expenses from Operating result from in income from

continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations Carrying amount of assets
$ 000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Functions or activities
Children and Family Services 17,022 17,334 17734 19,108 (712) (1,779) 5753 1,073 - 190
Communty Events 116 140 3600 3,718 (3,493) (3578) - - - -
Communtty Services and Culture 2368 2262 10,161 11,360 (7,792) (9,048) 621 1,002 - -
Corporate Support Services 166 745 144 167 54772 65 481 141973 78,686 5836 5536 360 559 1,272,157
Development Assessment 3863 4772 6578 6,674 (2,715) (2,102) - - - 26
Envircnment and Sustainability 1,168 764 5327 5 501 (4,159) 4827 1,020 504 - 8
Footpaths, Roads, Traffic and Stormwater 17,125 17,234 32,196 34 007 (15,071) (16 863) 2560 3,056 1,414 447 1,032,701
Library and History Servicas 1,786 1,270 17,005 11,032 (15,219) 9,762) 1,584 - - 50
Recreation and Aquatics 6,950 9,464 9,903 11,266 (2,953) (1.802) 1,060 1,146 a°rn 54 578
Regulatory Services 15624 17,392 138628 13,843 1,996 3,449 - - - 8018
Resource Recovery 41401 41,364 20265 28934 12136 12,430 - - 2.357 1,444
Strategic Planning 2606 2716 5972 7934 (3.366) (5,218) 1265 750 - -
Trees, Parks and Sportstields 18,758 12,557 35432 35,211 (18,674) (22654) 792 - 745 867 93 667
Other - - - - - - - - 2 -
Total functions and activities 323,533 27143% 241,582 254 549 81,951 16,887 20,491 13,157 2578673 2462848

Page 14 0of 79
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions

Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:
Children and Family Services

* Ptan for and providing Councit's Education and Care Services for families with children aged 0 to 12 years, inciuding:
* Longday care
*  Family day care
* Preschool and occasional care
«  Out of school hours care
*  Support parents’ participation in the workforce and/or society
*  Support children with additional needs and from vulnerable and disadvantaged backgrounds

Community Events

» Organise, present and evaluate a program of high quality events that engage the local community in celebrations of
place, culture and diversity.
» Pravide employment for local performing artists and art workers.

Community Services and Culture

*  Providing, and working with partners on, programs and services to support and promote community wellbeing

» Developing social and cultural strategies and plans

« Initiating and managing programs that position the Inner West as a destination for excellence and innovation in the
ans and culture

*  Activating Council's community facilities to foster community building, participation, and social support

Corporate Support Services

Customer Service, Business Excellence and Civic Governance
Communications and Engagement

Finance

Human Resources

Information and Communications Technology

Legal Services

Procurement

Properties, Major Building Projects and Facilities

Development Assessment

* Implementing Council’s statutory responsibiities to effectively manage change within the built and physical environment
« Providing accurate, timely and consistent planning and building advice to customers and high quality decisions and
development cutcomes

Environment and Sustainability

+ Strategic ptanning for Urban Sustainability & Urban Ecolegy

«  Supporting community involverment with urban ecology volunteer projects

*  Managing Council's environmental risk, compliance, ecological design and envircnmental performance, menitoring and
reporting

Footpaths, Roads, Traffic and Stormwater

+ Ptan, design and construct infrastructure

* Maintain and manage infrastructure:

Road pavements

Roadside fumiture

Kerb and gutter

Footpaths

Cycleways

Bridges

Streetscape

Road reserve signage and pavement markings

continued on next page Page 150/ 79
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Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions (continued)

«  Stormwater drainage
* Traffic facilities and devices
* Public carparks

Library and History Services

Deliver ibrary services to a network of eight libraries with about 100,000 library members

Provide a program of regular activities

Manage the annual one million visitors to the library, the one million borrowed items and free access to technology and
digital resources

Provide history services and research, manage collections and archives, present exhibitions and displays and run
community workshops and programs

Partner with community organisations and scheols to expand library activities and increase library use

Recreation and Aquatics

Develop, plan for, and promote recreation opportunities to meet the needs of the Inner West Community.

Manage the service provider contracts for Annette Kellerman Aquatic Centre and Fanny Durack Aquatic Centre to
ensure that services and programming meet the needs of the community

Manage Ashfield Aguatic Centre (under redevelopment), Dawn Fraser Baths (under redevelopment) and Leichhardt
Park Aquatic Centre to ensure services and programming meet the needs of the community.
Develop and deliver master plans for the public domain to support growth and change.

Regulatory Services

Manage the urban environment in a way that protects ife, property, amenities and the environment (natural, built and
cultural) through the use of regulatory tools and education.

Resource Recovery

Undertake strategic planning for Resource Recovery and provide policy, education and information that leads to
behaviour change in refation to the avoidance, reuse, recycling and disposal of matenals.

Deliver daily collection and transport services to more than 90,000 households and businesses across the Inner West for
waste, recycling, garden waste, household ciean up, illegal dumping and lane cleaning, kitter bins, Community Recycling
Centres and other recycling services (e-waste, mattresses, white goods),

Strategic Planning

Protect and improve the local, natural and built environment through land use policy and strategy development.

Guide the efficient and effective use and distribution of Council's resources.

Guide the defivery of local infrastructure ensuring it supports forecast growth.

Deliver a suite of plans to drive change and economic development, shape future growth cutcomes and guide the
dedivery of infrastructure.

Develop outcomes based organisational strategy that reflects community neads and aspirations through effective
integrated planning and reporting and delivery of the Community Strategic Plan, Delivery Program and Operational Plan.
Develop and defiver master plans for the public domain to support growth and change.

Trees, Parks and Sportsfieids

Responsible for all activities within parks, reserves, sporting grounds and public open space, inciuding maintenance,
renewal and upgrade projects.

Coordinating recreation planning and programs for parks and open space.

Managing the implementation of Urban Forest Policy aims and objectives, including both public and private trees.
Managing fleet procurement, including maintenance, use and disposal of Council's plant, vehicles and major equipment
as well as overseeing Council's depot facilities, in particular their fleet maintenance, parking and storage provisions.
Streetscape maintenance ~ including street sweeping, verge mowing and weed control.

Developing, delivering and promoting recreation opportunities to meet the needs of the Inner West community.
Managing Coundil's service provider contracts for indoor recreational facilities, the Debbie and Abbey Borgia Recreation
Centre and Robyn Webster Sports Centre, to ensure that servioes and programming meet the needs of the community.

Page 16 ol 79
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations
$ 000 AASB 2020 2018
(a) Rates and annual charges
Ordinary rates
Residential 1058 (1) 85,876 82507
Business 1058 (1) 35,283 35,070
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) (1,874) {1,978)
Rates levied to ratepayers 119,285 115,599
Pensioner rate subsidies received o 964 967
Total ordinary rates 120,249 116,566
Special rates
Environmental levy 271 262
Urban street 185 181
Rates levied to ratepayers 456 443
Total special rates 456 443
Annual charges
(pursuant ¥: 5 49 54984 54966 s 501455611)
Domestic waste management services 1058 (1) 43,215 42238
Stormwater management services 1,776 1,771
Waste management services (non-domestic) - 1,361
Section 611 charges 192 153
Less: pensioner rebates (Council policy) 1088 (1) (3,254) {3.,235)
Annual charges levied 41929 42,288
Total annual charges ) 41929 42,288
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES ) 162,634 159,297

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattemn for material items of Council revenue:
15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASE 15 “at a pointin time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASE 15 “over time®,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while

1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Coundl has used 2016 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy for rates and charges
Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these
receipts.

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for ebigible pensioners’ place of residence in the
local government council area that are not subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating year as itis an
enforceable debt inked to the rateable property.

2019 Accounting Policy
The accounting policy for 2019 was as per above.

continued on next page Page 17 ol 79
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

$ 000 AASB 2020 2018
(b) User charges and fees

Specific user charges

(per 5.502 - spedific "actual use’ charges)

Domestic waste management services 172 284
Waste management services (non-domestic) 699 471
Total specific user charges 871 755
Other user charges and fees

(i) Fees and charges - statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)

Building services ~ other 700 277
Private works — section 67 1,101 406
Regulatory’ statutory fees 813 346
Section 10.7 certficates (EP&A Act) 523 445
Town planning 15(1) 4,504 5544
Building services 78 83
Regulatory — compliance 1,149 1,581
Regulatory feas - other 73 1,510
Total fees and charges — statutory/regulatory B8.941 10,192
(ii) Fees and charges — other (incl. general user charges (per .608))

Child care 15(2) 12,331 16413
Community centres 324 462
Leisure centre 1,735 4762
Park rents 764 1,509
Parking fees 15(1) 2915 3,587
Hoarding fees 995 979
Meals on wheels 240 322
Pool (admissions) 15(2) 3,530 2893
Other 47 978
Total fees and charges — other ' 22881 31,805
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 32,693 42,852

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASE 15 “at a point in time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 "over time",

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASE 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for user charges and fees
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service. There is no material obligation for Council in retation to refunds or
retums.

Where an upfront fee is charged such as membership fees for the leisure centre the fee is recognised on a straight-fine basis
over the expected life of the membership. Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and al revenue
from licences is recognised at the time that the licence is granted rather than the term of the licence.

2019 accounting policy
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided.

continued on next page Page 18 ol 79
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
$ 000 AASB 2020 2018
(c) Other revenues
Ex gratia rates 483 486
Fines — parking 1058(1) 13,181 15,168
Fines — other 928 1,050
Legal fees recovery - other 252 449
Diesel rebate 34 17
Credit card transaction fee 151 228
Other 1,638 1,853
Street fumiture income - 162
Bus shelter income 1,341 1497
Donations Received 11 -
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 18,019 21,010

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material itemns of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 *at a pointin time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates mcome recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASE 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for other revenue
Where the revenue relates to a contract with customer, the revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is
completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Where the revenue relates to a contract which is not enforceable or does not contain sufficiently specific performance
obligations then revenue is recognised when an unconditional right to a receivable arises or the cash is received, which is
earlier.

2019 accounting policy:

Ceundil recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Council and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council’s activities as described below. Coundil
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

Other revenue is recorded when the payment is due, the vaiue of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever
occurs first.

Miscellaneous sales are recognised when physical possession has transferred to the customer which is deemed to be the
point of transfer of risks and rewards.

Other income is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever
occurs first.

2019 Accounting Policy:
The Accounting policy in 2019 was consistent with the above,

continued on next page Page 190l 79
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Operating ~ Operating Capital Capital
$ 000 ASB 2020 2019 2020 2019

(d) Grants

General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation

Finandial assistance -~ general component 1,397 1,987 - -
Finandal assistance - local roads component 1,379 666 - -
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance - general component 1058 (1) 2,228 2,060 - -
Financial assistance - local roads component 713 890 - -
Total general purpose 5717 5,403 - -
Specific purpose
Aged care 924 938 - -
Child care 1068 (1) 4829 1,073 - -
Environmental programs 997 207 - 265
Floodplain management 23 32 - -
LEP/DCP 1,265 750 - -
Library — per capita 54 548 - -
LIRS subsidy 119 133 - -
Recreation and culture 46 150 1,080 996
Street lighting 665 660 - -
Transport {roads to recovery) - - 857 754
Other - - 3,288 1,084
Community services 160 158 - .
Total specific purpose 9568 4645 5,205 3,108
Total grants 15286 10,048 5205 3,109
Grant revenue is attributable to:
- Commonwealth funding 7,846 6,548 1,149 -
— State funding 7,440 2750 2498 -
- Other funding - 750 1,558 3,109
15,286 10,048 5.205 ‘3,109
continued on next page Page 200l 79

39

ltem 19

Attachment 1



IWER W8T

i Financial S 2020
Inner West Council inancial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Operating  Operating Capital Capital
$ 000 botes AASB 2020 2019 2020 2019
{e) Contributions

Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):

Cash contributions

S 7.4 - contributions using planning

agreements - - 717 5,082

S 7.11 - contributions towards

amenities/services 1058 (1} - - 17,536 11678

Total developer contributions — cash - - 18253 16,730
Non-cash contributions

S 7.4 - contributions using planning

agreements - - 2840
Total developer contributions

non-cash - - - 2,840

Total developer contributions - - 18253 19,570
Other contributions:

Cash contributions

Roads and bridges - - 713 767

RMS contributions (regional roads, block

grant) 1,389 1,093 - -

Other 421 580 2229 -

Total other contributions — cash 1,810 1,683 2,942 767

Non-cash contributions

Other S - 908 = -
Total other contributions - non-cash - - 9,089 -
Total other contributions 1,810 1,683 12,031 767
Total contributions 1,810 1,683 30,284 20,337
TOTAL GRANTS AND

CONTRIBUTIONS 17,096 11,731 35489 23,446

Accounting policy for grants and contributions
Accounting policy from 1 July 2019
Grant income under AASB 15

Where grantincome arises from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations
then the revenue are recognised when control of each performance obligations is satisfied.

The performance obligations are varied based on the agreement but include [provide details of performance obligations within
AASB 15 grants e.g. events, vaccinations]. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant, cash is received upfront
for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within

grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which have
continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract.

continued on next page Page 210l 79
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to refiect the transfer of benefit.

Grant income

Assets ansing from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 is recognised at the fair value of the asset when the asset is received.
Coundils considers whether there are any related Kability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard,

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset is received

Capital grants

Capital grants received to enable Council to acquire or construct an item of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment to
identified specifications which will be under Councl's control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when
the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropnate measure of the completeness of the construction preject as there is no profit margin.

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlied by the Council,
Contributions

Coundil has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
74, 7.11and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due 1o the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Coundil.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but the Counal
may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules

Accounting policy prior to 1 July 2019

Control over grants and contributions is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) and is valued at the fair value of
the granted or contributed asset at the date of transfer.

For grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year that were obtained on condition that they be
expended in a particular manner, or used over a particular period, and those conditions were un-discharged at reporting date,
the unused grant or contribution is disclosed below.

Ceoundl has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
7.4, 7.11 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due 1o the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Coundil.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but the Counal
may apply contributions according to the pricrities established in work schedules

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extant that the requisite service has not been
provided at reporting date.

continued on next page Page 220l 79
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
$ '000
(f) Unspent grants and contributions — external restrictions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition that they be
spent in a specified manner due to extemnally imposed restrictions.

Operating grants

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period

Add: operating grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent
(2019 only)

Add: operating grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future
peniod

Less: operating grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (2019
only)

Less: operating grants received in a previcus reporting period now spent and
recognised as income

Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (operating grants)

Less: capital grants received in a previous reporting period now spent and
recognised as income

42
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2020

10,645

4815

(832)

(7,007)
7,531

2018

72,208

17.270

(78,834)

10,645
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Note 4. Interest and investment income
$ 000

Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost

-~ Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. spedal purpose rates)
- Cash and investments

- Other

Fair value adjustments

- Movements in investments at fair value through profit and loss

Total Interest and investment income

Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is eamed,

43
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2020

315
3,118
1,561

215
5,209

2018

594
3986
1,928

6,508
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations
$ 000
(a) Employee benefits and on-costs

Salaries and wages

Employee termination costs

Travel expenses

Employee leave entitlements (ELE)
Superannuation

Workers' compensation insurance

Fringe benefit tax (FBT)

Training costs (other than salaries and wages)
Other

Total employee costs

Less: capitalised costs
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED

Number of ‘full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end

Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-costs

Financial Statements 2020
2020 2018
87,987 91,923
5,640 2,088
41 42
9,796 12752
9,770 9863
1,633 2010
570 569
547 249
93 140
116,077 119,634
(350) (137)

115727 119,497

1,035 1,038

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

Retirement benefit abligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined

benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation pfans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Coundil participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, when sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its oblgations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes

payable - refer to Note 21 for mere information.,

$ 000
(b) Borrowing costs

(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on leases

Interest on loans

Total interest bearing liability costs

Total interest bearing liability costs expensed
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED

Acoou_ntlng policy for borrowing costs

2020 2019

5 -
420 620
425 620
425 620
425 620

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred,

continued on next page

44

Page 25of 79

ltem 19

Attachment 1



INER W8T

Inner West Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

$ 000
(c) Materials and contracts

Raw materials and consumables

Contractor and consultancy costs

- Agency Staff

~ Consultants

- Contractors

Auditors remuneration *

Legal expenses:

- Legal expenses: planning and development

- Legal expenses: debt recovery

- Legal expenses: other

Expenses from short-term leases (2020 only)
Expenses from leases of iow value assets (2020 only)
Variable lease expense relating to usage (2020 only)
Operating leases expense (2019 only):

- Operating lease rentals: minimum lease payments °
Tipping fees

Total materials and contracts

TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS

continued on next page
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2020 2018
8,691 9853
- 71
8832 13223
2,303 2953
31,991 26,757
433 554
525 567
- 437
444 88
327 -
609 -
26 -
- 818
9 678 9814
63,859 85,135
63,859 65,135
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

$ 000 2020 2018

Accounting policy for materials and contracts
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the council receives the goods or services,

Operating leases (2019 only)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to Council as lessee are dassified

as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1. Operating lease payments are attributable to:

Computers - 557
Motor vehicles - 141
Other - 120

- 818

2. Auditor remuneration
During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor
of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statements 275 276
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 275 276

Remuneration for non-assurance services - -
Total Auditor-General remuneration 275 276
Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Internal Audit Services 158 278
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 158 278
Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms 158 278
Total Auditor remuneration 433 554
continued on next page Page 27 of 79
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
$ 000 o 2020 2019
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of

non-financial assets
Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment 1,989 2129
Office equipment 456 78
Furniture and fittings 154 128
Land improvements (depreciable) 3,623 33682
Car parks (depreciable) 178 178
Infrastructure: 18
— Buildings 7,855 6,806
- Roads 6,638 6,635
~ Bridges 179 179
- Footpaths 1,568 1,235
-~ Other road assets 690 689
- Stormwater drainage 1424 1,233
- Aquatic Fadilities 1,448 1,180
- Wharves 78 81
- Sea walls 388 388
- Kerb and gutter 1,441 1,410
Right of use assets 4 143 -
Other assets:
- Domestic waste vehicles 383 384
Intangible assets 12 636 499
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 29271 26,594
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 29,271 26,594
TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT FOR NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 29,271 26,594

Accounting policy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses of non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note 10 for IPPE assets, Note 12 for intangible assets and Note
14 for right of use assets.

Depreciation is capitalised where in-house assels have contributed to new assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Council assets held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to be
specialised, are no longer required to be tested for impairment under AASE 136. This is because these assets are assessed
on an annual basis to ensure that the cammying amount is not matenally different from fair value and therefore an impairment
loss would be captured during this assessment.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets that do not meet the criteria
above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

continued on next page Page 28 ol 79
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Financial Statements 2020

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the dass of asset,

with only the excess to be recognised in the income Statement.

$ 000 2020

(e) Other expenses

Advaertising 412
Bad and doubtful debts 1,761
Bank charges 504
Computer software charges 4,769
Contributions/levies to other levels of government

— NSW fire brigade levy 3,507
- Self Enforcing Infringement Notice Scheme (SEINS) processing fees 1,875
- Waste lovy 4,703
Coundillor expenses — mayoral fee (ind deputy mayor) 69
Coundillor expenses — councillors’ fees 395
Administration and committee fees -
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 1,432
Electricity and heating 2,989
Insurance 2414
Postage 446
Printing and stationery 292
Street lighting 1,344
Subscriptions and publications 6844
Telephone and communications 1,057
Valuation fees 388
Water rates 422
Gas 642
Other 2,235
Total other expenses ) 32,300
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 32,300

Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Coundil receives the goods or services.

48

2019

1,149
1878

510
4112

3,269
2,120
4273
76
s

2,088
3230
2292
621
255
1663
473
1,266
350
1.068
593
2745
34,421
34,421
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Note 6. Gain or loss from disposal of assets
$ 000

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal — infrastructure

Less: carying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off
Net gain/(loss) on disposal

Investment properties

Proceeds from disposal — investment property

Less: camying amount of investment property sold/written off
Net gain/(loss) on disposal

Intangible assets
Less: camrying amount of intangible assets sold/written off
Net gain/(loss) on disposal

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Accounting policy for disposal of assets

Financial Statements 2020
2020 2018
1,466 2,3%
(5,626) (10,672)
{4,160) (8,282)
73,168 -
(23,779) -
49389 -
(14) -
(14) =
45,215 (8,282)

Gains and lesses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in the Income

Statement.

The gain or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the

asset is de-recognised.
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Note 7(a). Cash and cash equivalents
$ 000 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank ) 106,546 23,798
Total cash and cash equivalents 106,546 23,798

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents indude: cash on hand; deposits held at call
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly Bquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value; and bank
overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financal Position.

Note 7(b). Investments

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ 000 Current  Non-current Curremt  Non-current
Investments
a. ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss’
~ 'Held for trading’ - 1,097 - 1,139
b. 'Financial assets at amortised cost’ 130,800 82594 118,330 78544
Total Invesiments 130,800 83,691 118,330 79,683
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 237,346 83,691 142,128 79,683
Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss
Mortgage backed securities ) - 1,097 - 1,139
Total _ - 1,007 - 1,139
Financial assets at amortised cost
Long term deposits 118,000 17,000 105,130 10,000
NCD's, FRN's (with maturities > 3 months) 12,800 33,150 11,200 29,500
Fixed bonds (ADIs) = 32444 2,000 39044
Total 130,800 82,564 118330 78,544

Accounting policy for investments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument,

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incumred).

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification
On initial recognition, Council ciassifies its financial assets into the following categories - those measured at:
» amortised cost
« fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financal assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

continued on next page Page 31 ol 79
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Note 7(b). Investments (continued)

Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:
« the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash fiows, and
+ the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Coundil's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise Term Deposits, Floating Rate Notes, Fixed Rate Notes, trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are camed at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

Interest income, impairment and gains or koss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are
measwred at fair value through profit or loss,

Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit ot loss.

Coundil's financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities
in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Note 7(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments
2020 2020 2019 2018
$ 000 Current ' Non-current Current ' Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 237346 83691 142,128 79683
attributable to:
External restrictions 41,372 83,691 25914 79683
Internal restrictions 154 464 - 53,566 -
Unrestricted , 41,510 - 62648 -
237,346 83,691 142,128 79,683

1) All funds, including unrestricied funds, have been alfocaled to upcoming Coundl projects in lne with he Operational and Asset
Management Plans. The Unrestrictod furkds have been set aside withen niernal council resenves covering the cost of projects as per
these plans.

$ 000 2020 2018

Details of restrictions

External restrictions — other

Developer contributions — general 77429 63,212
Specific purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) ~ general fund 7531 10,645
Stormwater management 1439 730
Watershed 60 59
Special Rate Vanation Income 7,554 4963
Mainstreet levy 240 240
Domestic waste management 29,303 24888
3.5% levy reserve __1507 882
External restrictions — other 125,063 105,597
Total external restrictions 125,063 105,597
Internal restrictions
Employees leave entitlement 15,884 34442
Deposits, retentions and bonds 17,696 16,374
Financal Assistance Grant reserve 2941 2750
Investment Property Reserve 80,933 -
Infrastructure Renewal Reserve 19,446 -
Depreciation Contra Reserve 17,564 -
Total internal restrictions 154 464 53,566
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 279,527 159,163
Page 33 of 79
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Note 8. Receivables

$ 000

Purpose

Rates and annual charges
Interest and extra charges
User charges and fees
Accrued revenues

- Interest on investments
~ Other income accruals
Fines

Net GST receivable

Other debtors

Total

Less: provision of impairment
Rates and annual charges

Interest and extra charges

User charges and fees

Fines

Total provision for impairment —
receivables

TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES

$ 000

2020
Current

8,979
379
7,150

750
4,764
7,258
1,232

30512

(630)
an
{1,046}
(3,964)

(5.717)
24,795

Movement in provision for impairment of receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year (calculated in accordance with AASB 138)

+ new provisions recognised during the year

- amounts already provided for and written off this year

- amounts provided for but recovered during the year
Balance at the end of the year

continued on next page
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2020
Non-currem

Financial Statements 2020
2019 2018
Current Non-current
6,406 -
1,428 -
3,311 -
1177 -
3,381 -
8,010 -
2,637 -
24 921 -
51271 -
(341) -
(54) -
(519) -
(2,779) —
(3,693) =
47578 -
2020 2019
3693 4,054
2,024 1,864
- (452)
- (1,773)
5717 3,693
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Note 8. Receivables (continued)

Accounting policy for receivables

Recognition and measurement
Receivables are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 menths after the reporting date
which are classified as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognised intially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for setlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and when
estimating the ECL, the Coundl considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Councll's historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and incuding forward-looking information.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Council uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:
* the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by the Coundl to actions
such as realising security (if any is heid) or
» the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the
asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Coundil uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lfetime credit losses are recognised on day 1.

In light of the global pandemic of 2020, Council has increased the probability of debts becoming unrecoverable in ine with the
decrease in economic activity as per the Reserve Bank of Australia’s report on economic cutiook.

The Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficuity
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings.

Where the Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are
discounted at the onginal effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.
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Note 9. Inventories and other assets
2020 2020 2018 2018
$ 000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
{(a) Inventories
(i) Inventories at cost
Stores and materials 143 - 148 -
Trading stock 50 - 32 -
Total inventories at cost 193 - 180 -
TOTAL INVENTORIES 193 - 180 -
(b) Other assets
Prepayments 265 - 3,291 -
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 2,659 - 3,291 -
2020 2020 2018 2019
$ 000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Total unrestricted assets 2,852 - 3471 -
TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS 2,852 - 3471 -

Accounting policy for inventories and other assets

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 10(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

as ot 3006179 A Assol movesnents desing the reportiog period o as at V&2

Gross cwryng Acourmdaled M’: Adtonsamfe Addioostranse  Cavying vabe Deprociston Adusiments ano Goss camying Accuradoted
§ o amourd deprecabon amourt rsrenowads ' f5 now sssels of dksposa’s expense WP adaitions rarsfvs amourd deprecston
Capral wark in progress 36,021 - |02t {7,499) (42,297 - - 84,940 (5,888) 75,283 -
Plant and equpment 30,033 (17.853) 12,180 - 2827 (1.997) (1.989) - - 28,929 {18,108}
Office equipment 4400 (2 988) 1414 - 43 (29) (456) - - 3,562 (2,584)
Furniture and fitings. 1,983 (1.3%4) 569 - 174 - (154} - - 2,167 (1.548)
Land:
~ Cromn iand 97 858 - 97 858 - - - - - - 97,858 -
- Operatonaf land 396,074 - 396,074 - - - -~ - - 396,074 -
— Community land 166 909 - 166 609 - 1317 (1,408) - - 4710 171,588 -
Land improvements —
non-depreciatie 4,259 - 4,259 - - - - - @ 4285 -
Land mprovements — deprecable 114,176 (30,935) 83,241 789 479 (488) (3623) - @n 114,901 (34 530)
Car parks — non-depreciabie 3547 - 3547 - - - - - - 3,547 -
Car parks ~ depreciable 11,193 (3,085) 8,138 27 - (1} (178) - - 11,215 (3.229)
Infrastructure:
~ Buiidings 337613 92,473) 245140 1,349 37,590 (E1¢4] (7.855) - - 375,567 {96,920}
- Roads 322570 {160,783} 161,787 3,303 - (349) (6.638) - - 323,650 (165547)
~ Brdges 15,985 4 844) 11,951 - - - (179 - - 15,995 5.023)
~ Footpaths 119,584 (36,088) 83478 462 - (B8) {1,568) - - 119,860 {37 576)
- Kerb and gutter 194 584 (76 965) 117,619 548 - (287) (1.441) . . 194 578 (78,141)
- Ofher road assets 21648 6,801) 14,758 100 - - (690) - - 21,758 (7,581)
- Bulk eanhworks
(non-deprecabie) 512259 - 512259 - - - - - - 512,259 -
- Sea wals 37424 (10.562) 26 862 - - - (383) - - 37424 (10.951)
- Wharves 6,308 2.258) 4,050 - - (104) (78) - - 6,077 (2.209)
- Stormwaler dranage 177633 (55,152) 122 481 908 - (298} (1,424) - - 178,106 (56,439)
- Aquatic Centres S5122 (11,222) 43,900 - 1 - (1.448) - - 55,124 (12671)
Other assets:
~ Domestic waste vehides 4511 (,771), 2,740 - - - (383) - - 4511 (2,154}
Total Infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment 2671696 (515,230) 2,156 465 - - (5,627} (28.402) 04,540 (1,178) 2754318 (538.211)
1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed 10 the acquisibon of new
continued on next page ..
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75283
10621
978
615

97 858
396,074
171588

4286
80,371
3547
7966

215647
158,103
10972
82284
116437
14,177

512259
2MAT3
3868
121666
42453

2357

2216107
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 10(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

as at 300678 . Assol movesnents desing the reporting period ) o as at JO0ES
™ Reas'uation Nat

Gross caryng Accumulated caryng Addbors  Addbons mew  Campng vabe Deprecabon Adustments Wnd  ncoemnds 10 Gross camying Accumedated crmng
§ 000 amoynd Segreoakon amount ranensds ! 25360 of hapasals P Yarstes oqudy (AR amount NN amount
Capstal wark in progress 2750 - 27 591 8430 - - - - - 35,021 - 36,021
Plant and equpment 29,340 (17,213) 12127 - 3,73 (1,554) (2.129) - - 30,033 (17.853) 12,180
Office equipment 5,208 2.910) 2298 - 1089 - (78) (1,696} - 4,400 (2.986) 1414
Furnituse and fitings 1,980 (1,265) 695 - 34 - (128} - - 1,998 (1,394) 5ag
Land:
~ Operational kand 385312 - 395,312 - - (85) B 827 - 396,074 - 396,074
- Community and 177,258 - 177,258 - - - - (10,349) - 166,908 - 165,909
— Crown land 88 336 - 88 236 - - - - 9522 - 97,858 - 97 858
Land impeovements —
non-de preciable 4259 - 4259 - - - - - - 4,259 - 4259
Land mmprovements — depreciable 108,760 (27,573 81,187 5416 - - (3.362) - - 114,176 {30,935) 83241
Car parks ~ non-depreciable 3547 - 3547 - - - - - - 3547 - 3547
Car parks - depreciabie 10,869 QAT 7892 a2 - - (178) - - 11,153 (3,055) 8138
Infrastructure:
—Buildings 318579 (84.346) 23434 8873 - (3.331) (6.906) 8865 3307 337 63 {92.473) 245,140
~Roads 317,056 (155,94) 161,141 7687 - (#07) @.291) - - 322,510 (160,783) 161,787
- Brigges 15422 (4 867) 10,75 573 - - (179) - - 15,995 (4.844) 11,151
~ Footpaths 107,756 (34 851) 72,805 11,808 - - (1,235) - - 119,564 {36.086) 83478
~ Other road assets 21,451 6.201) 15250 168 - - (33} - - 21,649 (6,891) 14,758
— Bulk earthworks
(non-depreciable) 512,259 - 512,259 - - - - - - §12,259 - 512259
— Stormwaer dranage 174, 452 (53,319} 120,633 3,181 - - (1.233) - - 177,633 (55,152) 122,481
~ Swimming poos 86,174 (11,724) 54,450 - - (4812) {1,180) (8,885) 4303 85122 (11.222) 43900
- Kerb and gutter 186 959 (75.508) 111454 756 - {502) {1.410) - 7.286 194 584 (76,965} 117618
- Sea wals 37424 (10,174) 27,250 - - = (388) - - 37,424 (10.562) 26,862
—Wharves 6,308 (2,178) 4130 - - - (81) - - 6,308 (2.258) 4050
Other assets:
~ Domestic waste vehicies 4511 (1,387 3124 - - - (384) - - 4511 NiXs)) 2740
Total Infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment 2,620,790 (492, 706) 2123084 47283 4,859 (10.671) (26,085) (1,896 14 896 2,671,665 (515,230) 2,156,465

(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of axsling assets (a3 opposed 10 the 3cquisibon of new assets).
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Note 10(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
itis not matenally different from current fair value.

Increases in the camying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
refiably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

When infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are acquired by Council at significantly below fair value, the assets are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Property Assets Years

Office equipment 51020 Buildings 9to 151

Office fumiture 2t0 10 Aquatic Centres 10 to 100

Plant and Fleet 210 10

Domestic Waste Vehicles 3t010 Play Spaces and Sporting Fields Years
Land Improvements Parks (Deprecable) S5to 124

Transport Assets Years Seawalis 20 1o 141

Roads 25to 151 Wharves 20to 80

Road FormationBulk Earthworks Not depreciable

Bridges 1510162

Footpaths 2510129

Kerb and Gutter 3010273

Traffic Devices 2010129

Other Road assets S5t0129

Car Parks (Non Dopreciable) eoreciont

Car Parks (Deprediable) 11t0 150

Stormwater Drainage 15-196

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date,

Land under roads
Land under reads is land under roadways and road reserves incuding land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips,

Coundil has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 1051 Land
Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.
Crown reserves

Crown reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognised within Council's Income Statement.

continued on next page Page 39 of 79
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Note 10(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the coundl of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting
equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

At present, Council does not have any rural fire service assets.

Note 10(b). Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

_____@sat30006720 ; &S at 300619
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
carrying depn. and carrying carrying depn. and carrying

$ 000 amount  impairment amount amount  impairment amount
Domestic waste management
Domestic waste vehicies 4511 2,154 2357 ) 451 L 2740
Total DWM 4,511 2,154 2,357 4511 1,771 2740
TOTAL RESTRICTED
IPP&E 4511 2,154 2,357 4511 1,771 2,740
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Note 11. Investment properties
$ 000 2020 2018
Owned investment property
Investment property on hand at fair value - 28489
Total owned investment property - 28,489
(a) Reconciliation — owned investment property
Reconciliation of annual movement:
Opening balance 28,489 28,040
- Disposais during year (23,779) -
- Net gain/(loss ) from fair value adjustments - 449
- Reclassified as community land (4,710) -
CLOSING BALANCE - OWNED INVESTMENT PROPERTY - 28,489
{b) Investment property income and expenditure — summary

(2019 only)
Direct operating expenses on investment property:
- that generated rental income - (6)
Net revenue contribution from investment property - (6)
Fair value movement for year - 449
Total income attributable to investment property - 443

Accounting policy for investment property

Investment property, principally comprising freehold office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Council. Changes in fair values are recorded in the Income Statement as a separate line item.

Properties that are under construction for future use as investment properties are regarded as investment property. These are
also carried at fair value unless the fair value cannot yet be refiably determined. Where that is the case, the property will be
accounted for at cost until either the fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is complete,

All of council’s Investment Properties were either disposed of or reclassified as Community Land during FY20.
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Note 12. Intangible assets
Intangible assets are as follows:
$ 000 2020 2018
Software
Opening values at 1 July
Gross book value 1,896 -
Accumutated amortisation (499) -
Net book value - opening balance 1,397 -
Movements for the year
~ Other movements 93 -
- Transfers from other asset dasses - 1,896
- Purchases 2,384 -
- Amortisation charges (636) {499)
-~ WIP movement - net 5,880 -
— Gross book value written off (14) -
Closing values at 30 june
Gross book value 4,065 18%
Accumulated amortisation (841) (499)
Software work in progress (WIP) balance 5,880 -
Total software — net book value 9104 1,397
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET BOOK VALUE 9,104 1,397

Accounting policy for intangible assets

IT development and software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquinng software and licenses that will contribute to
future pericd financial benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems.

Costs capitalised incdude external direct costs of materials and service, direct payroll, and payroll related costs of employees’
time spent on the project. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over periods generally ranging from three to ten

years. IT development costs include only those costs directly attributable to the development phase and are only recognised
following completion of technical feasibility, and where Coundll has an intention and ability to use the asset
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Note 13. Contract assets and liabilities
2020 2020

$ 000 Current Non-current
{a) Contract assets
Capital Grants 1,260 -
Total Contract assets 1,260 -

2020 2020 2018
$ 000 Currem Non-current Current
{b) Contract liabilities
Income in Advance 3,998 4174 4267
Total contract liabilities 3,998 4,174 4,267

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

The contract assets have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously, revenue was recognised on receipt of
the funds. Council now recognizes the revenue in relation to the performance obligations of the contract (as for the majority
of it's capital grants the receipt of funds is in arrears compared to the completion of the performance obligation).

Accounting policy for contract assets and liabilities

Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in the contract, the
amounts recegnised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the
customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the customer before the customer
pays consideration or before the payment is due, Council presents the work in progress as a contract asset, unless the rights
to that amount of consideration are unconditional, n which case Coundl recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring a good or service
to the customer, Coundil presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.
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Note 14. Leases

The Council has applied AASE 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 117 and related interpretations.

(i) Council as a lessee

Coundil has leases over a range of assets including land and buildings, vehicles, machinery and IT equipment. Information
relating to the leases in place and associated balances and transactions is provided below.

Buildings

Council leases land and buildings for service delivery (a childcare centre and a nursery) and also leases a car park; the leases
are generally between 2 and 7 years and some of them include a renewal option 1o allow Council to renew for up to twice
the noncancellable lease term at their discretion.

The buiding leases contains an annual pricing mechanism based on either fixed increases or CPl movements at each
anniversary of the lease inception.

Plant & Equipment
Coundil leases vehicies with lease terms of 2 years; the lease payments are fixed during the lease term and there is generally
no renewal option.

Office and IT equipment
Leases for office and IT equipment are generally for low value assets, except for significant items such as photocopiers. The
leases are for batween 1 and 5 years with no renewal option and the payments are fixed.

Extension options
Coundil includes options in the building leases to provide flexibility and certainty to Council operations and reduce costs of
meoving premises; and the extension options are at Council's discretion.

At commencement date and each subsequent reporting date, Coundil assesses where it is reasonably certain that the
extension options will be exercised.

Coundil has determined that for all leases with an extension option, it is reasonably certain that this extension option will be
exercised,

Plant & Office & 1T
$ 000 Equipment Buildings Equipment Tortal
(a) Right of use assets
Opening balance at 30 June 2019 - - - -
Adoption of AASB 16 at 1 July 2019 - first time
lease recognition 182 230 90 502
Adjustments to right-of-use assats due to
re-measurement of lease kability - (5) - 5)
Depreciation charge (50) (7) (22) (143)
RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 132 154 68 354
continued on next page Page 44 of 79
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Note 14. Leases (continued)

2020 2020
$ 000 Current Non-current
{b) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities ) 191 176
TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES 191 176

(i) The maturity analysis
The maturity analysis of lease kabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

Total per
Statement of
Financial
$ 000 <1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total Position
Cash flows 180 177 - 367 367
$ 000 2020
(c) Income Statement
The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:
Interest on lease liabilities 5
Variable lease payments based on usage not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 2%
Depreciation of right of use assets 143
Expanses relating to short-term leases 3z7
Expenses relating to low-value leases 608
1,110
{(d) Statement of Cash Flows
Total cash outflow for leases (130)
(130)

Accounting policy

Accounting policies under AASB 16 — applicable from 1 July 2019
At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists — i.e. does the contract convey the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term, The
lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct costs, prepaxd lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives. The right-of-use

is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accerdance with the impairment
of asset accounting policy.

continued on next page Page 450l 79
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Note 14. Leases (continued)

The lease liability is inttially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council's
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
lease hability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

Exceptions to lease accounting
Ceuncil has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal

to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(ii) Council as a lessor

(e) Operating leases

Coundil leases cut a number of properties and for plant and equipment to community groups; these leases have been dassified
as operating Jeases for financial reporting purposes and the assets are included as investment property (refer note 11) and/or
IPP&E (refer note 10a) in the Statement of Financial Position,

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to operating leases where Council is a lessor are shown below:

$ 000 2020 2019
(i) Operating lease income

Other Council Properties

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 3,695 2,940
Lease income relating to varable lease payments not dependent on an index or a rate 22 -
Other lease Income

Leaseback fees - council vehicles 581 -
(ii) Investment Properties

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 2,779 3,059
Total income relating to operating leases 7,077 5999

(Ilv) Maturity analysis of contractual lease income
Maturity analysis of future lease income receivable showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

<1 year 1,372 -
1-2 yoars , 1413 -
Total undiscounted contractual lease income receivable 2,785 -

Accounting policy
When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

When Council has a sub-ease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted
for separately. The classification of the sub-ease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the useful life of the underlying asset.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease components then the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The lease ncome is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Note 15. Payables and borrowings

2020 2020 2019 2018
$ 000 Current Non-current Current Non-curmrent
Payables
Prepaid rates 232 - - -
Goods and services — operating expenditure 3245 - 12,943 -
Accrued expenses:

- Bomrowings 317 - 19 -
- Salaries and wages 1817 - 1,073 -
- Other expenditure accruals 6,863 - 4,210 -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 17,885 - 16,645 -
Other - 877 - 1,008 -
Total payables 31236 - 35898 -
Borrowings

Loans - secured ' 3,762 40,897 3,683 5416
Total borrowings 3,762 40,897 3683 5416
TOTAL PAYABLES AND

BORROWINGS 34998 40897 39581 = 5416

1 Loans are secured over the genenal rating income of Council
Disclosures on habity interest rate risk exposures, fair value dsclosures and securnty can be found in Note 22

$ ‘000 2020 2018

(a) Current payables and borrowings not anticipated to be settled within the
next twelve months

The following liabdities, even though diassified as curmrent, are not expected to be settied in
the next 12 months.,

Payables — security bonds, depoesits and retentions 11239 10460
Total payables and borrowings 11,239 10,460
continued on next page Page 47 of 79
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Note 15. Payables and borrowings (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
as ar 30068 Nowcash changes as o 300820
Acquston dse
rochange n
Oponng Fare vakw sccoontng  Obbwe nom-cash
$ w0 Bolance Canh Loy Acaston chanoes pobcy moveemnd Closing babose
Loans — secured a0 15560 - - - - 44558
Lease labites - - - - *»7 - w7
TOTAL 9000 35560 = = 367 = _AS026
as at 20/06/18 Non-cash changes as at 200619
Opening Farvae  Other noncash Closing
$ 000 Bstance Cash fows Acquisinon ohanpes fmovement balance
Loans - secured 13,336 (4237 - - - 9009
TOTAL 13,336 (4,237) - - - 9,099
$ 000 2020 2019
(¢) Financing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following
lines of credit:
Bank overdraft facilities * 1,000 2,000
Credit cards/purchase cards 274 549
Total financing arrangements 1,274 2,549
Undrawn facilities as at balance date:
- Bank overdraft facilities 1,000 2,000
— Crediit cards/purchase cards ) 274 549
Total undrawn financing arrangements 1,274 2,549

Additional financing arrangements information

Breaches and defauits
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans.

1 The bank overdralt facility may be drawn &t any time and may be terminated by the bank without nolice

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings
Coundl measures all financial liabilibes inttially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabdlities are
measwred at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Council comprise trade payables. bank and other loans and finance lease kabilities.

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the council prior to the end of financial year that are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the income Statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective-interest method. Fees paid on the establishment
of lean faciliies are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility

continued on next page Page 48 of 79
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Note 15. Payables and borrowings (continued)

will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown cccurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the cbligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the camrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabfities unless Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Eability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Note 16. Provisions

2020 2020 2018 2018
$ 000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Provisions
Employee benefits
Annual leave 9,280 - 9,647 -
Sick leave 575 - 600 -
Long service leave 19,398 1,418 19,232 1,902
Other leave 718 - 806 -
ELE on-costs 1912 75 2,148 107
Sub-total - aggregate employee benefits 31,883 1.483 32,433 2009
TOTAL PROVISIONS 31,883 1,493 32,433 2.009'
$ 000 2020 2018
Current provisions not anticipated to be settied within the next twelve
months
The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled
in the next 12 months.
Provisions - employees benefits 20270 19485

20270 19.485

Accounting policy for provisions
Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outfiow of resources will be requived to settie the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outfiow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the dass of obligations as a whole, A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same dass of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date, The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilties for wages and salanes (induding non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
wholly settied within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settied. The kability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Eability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settied within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting pericd using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as dosely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

continued on next page Page S0 of 79

69

ltem 19

Attachment 1



IWER W8T

o F ial S 5 0
Inner West Council el Saements 202

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 16. Provisions (continued)

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions inchude the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation and workers compensation expenses which will be payable upon the future payment
of certain leave kabilities which employees are entitied to at the reporting period.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Finandial Pesition if the Council does not have an
unconditional right to defer settiement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardiess of when the actual settiement
is expected to occur.
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Note 17. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments / decrements of
non-current asset values due to their revaluation.

(b) Changes in accounting policies due to adoption of new accounting standards
(not-retrospective)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Councd has adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers, AASB
1058 Income of Not-for-profit Entites and AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method
and therefore the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated and continues to comply
with AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 117 Leases, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions and associated
Accounting Interpretations.

Al adjustments on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 have been taken to retained earnings at 1 July 2019.

The impacts of adopting these standards and associated transition disdosures are provided below:

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position

(i) AASB 15 and AASB 1058

Transfer of control to a customer — over time or at a point in time

AASB 15 has specific crteria regarding whether control is transferred over time or at a point in time. The entity has reviewed
its contracts and concluded that the criteria for recognition over time is not met in some circumstances. In such cases,
revenue and related production costs will be recognised at the delivery of each separate performance cbligation instead of
over the contract using a single margin.

Principal v agent
Prior to adoption of AASB 15, the Council had assessed that they were a principal in transactions where ancther party was
involved in providing the goods or services including pass-through grants.

Under AASB 15, the indicators of a principal have changed and there are now a number of performance obligations within
grant agreements where the Council is acting as an agent since the onfy abligation is to transfer the funds to a third party.
The result is that Council can only recognise the “commission” to which they are entitled rather than the gross revenue and
expenses. There is no change to reported profit

Licences
Coundil has reviewed the licences it grants and considers that all licences are either short-term or low value and elects to
recognise all revenue from licences up-front rather than spreading them over the lfe of the licence.

Prepaid rates

Under AASB 1004, rates were recorded as revenue at the earfiest of receipt of the funds from the ratepayer and the
beginning of the rating period. Under AASB 1058, prepaid rates are recognised as a finandial Eability until the beginning of
the rating pariod.

Grants - operating

Under AASB 1004, most grant income was recognised as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 1058, where an agreement is
enforceable and contains sufficiently spedific performance obligations, the revenue is either recognised over time as the
work is performed, or recognised at the point in time that the control of the services passes to the customer.

Grants — capital

Under AASB 1004, most grant monies were recorded as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 1058, where Council has
received assets (including cash) to acquire or construct a recognizable non-financial asset, the asset is to be controlled by
Coundil and the contract is enforceable, then the asset is recognised as a contract liability on receipt and recorded as
revenue as the performance obligation to acquire or construct the asset is completed,
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Note 17. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,

changes in accounting estimates and errors {continued)

$ 000
Opening contract balances at 1 July 2019

Contract assets

- Under AASB 15

~ Under AASB 1058
Total Contract assets

Contract liabilities
- Under AASB 15
Total Contract liabilities

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position

Original

Balance
$ 000 1 July, 2019
Contract assets -
Total assets -
Contract iabilities —
Income in Advance -
Total liabilities dim
Accumutated surplus 2,182,842
Total equity -

72

impact
Increase
(decrease)

230
230

4,267
(4,267)

(230)

(230)

Balance at
1 July 2018

230
230

4267
4,267

Resiated
Baiance
1 July, 2019

230
230

4,267
(4,267)

2182612
230
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Note 18. Statement of cash flow information

$ 000 Moey 2020 2018

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position Ty 106,546 23798

Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 106,546 23,798

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from

operating activities

Net operating result from Income Statement 81,951 16,887

Adjust for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation 28271 26.5%

Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets (45,215) 8282

Non-cash capital grants and contributions (9,089) (2.840)

Adoption of AASB 15/1058 (230) -

Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:

- Investments classified as “at fair value’ or "held for trading’ (215) -

- Investment property - (449)

Share of net (profits)losses of associatesfoint ventures using the equity method {(101) (144)

+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:

Decreasel/(increase) in receivables (4,168) (5447

Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables 2,024 (361)

Decrease/(increase) in inventories (13) {2)

Decrease/(increase) in other cument assets 632 536

Decrease/(increase) in contract assets (1,260) -

Increase/(decrease) in payables (9,698) 4288

Increase/{decrease) in accrued interest payable 298 (6)

Increasel/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable 3387 3634

Increasel(decrease) in other kabilities 1,341 5,064

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 3,905 -

Increase/(decrease) in provision for employee benefits (1,066) 4,660

Increase/(decrease) in other provisions - {257y

Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities

from the Statement of Cash Flows 51764 60,439

{c) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Developer contributions ‘in kind' 9,089 2840

Total non-cash investing and financing activities 9,089 2,840
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Note 19. Interests in other entities

Financial Statements 2020

Council’s share of net income Councll's share of net assets

$ 000 2020 2019 2020 2019
Joint ventures 01 144 3,164 3637
Total 101 144 3,164 3,637
Joint Ventures
(a) Net carrying amounts - Council’s share
Nature of Measurement
$ 000 relationship method 2020 2019
CivicRisk Mutual Joint Venture Equity method 214 258
CivicRisk Metro Joint Venture Equity method 2,950 3379
Total carrying amounts — material associates 3,164 3637
(b) Details
Piace of
Principal activity business
CivicRisk Mutual Local govt insurance coverage Penrith NSW
CivicRisk Metro Local govt. insurance coverage Penrith NSW
(c) Relevant interests and fair values
Quoted interest in Interest in Proportion of
fair value outputs ownership voting power
$ Voo 2020 2019 2020 2015 2020 2019 2020 2019
CivicRisk Mutual 214 258 3% 4% 3% 4% 0% 6%
CivicRusk Metro 2,950 33719 % 23% 23% 23% 0% 17%
(d) Summarised financlal information for assoclates
CivicRisk Mutual CivicRisk Metro
$ 000 2020 2019 2020 2018
Statement of financiai position
Current assets
Other current assets 12,101 9,028 15,062 10,154
Non-current assets 5,102 5,368 6,711 12,769
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities 6412 4,578 3451 1,625
Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade
and other payables and provisions) 3635 2,279 5,558 6,651
Net assets 7,158 7,539 12,764 14,647
Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July) 13435 14,950 14,648 13,549
continued on next page Page 55 of 79
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Note 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

CivicRisk Mutual

$ 000 2020
Profit/(loss) for the period 211
Closing net assets 13,646
Council’s share of net assets (%) 3%
Council’s share of net assets ($) 214

Accounting policy for associates

2019

{1,524)
13.435

3%
258

Financial Statements 2020
CivicRisk Metro
2020 2018
(289) 1,099
14,359 14648
23% 23%
2950 3379

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB128 Investments in Associates

and Joint Ventures.

Under this method, the investment is initially recognised at cost and the camying amount is increased or decreased to recognise
the Council's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the investee after the date of acquisition.

If the Council's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the assocate, the Council discontinues

recognising its share of further losses.

The Council's share in the associates gains or losses arising from transactions between itself and its associate are efiminated.

Adjustments are made to the associates accounting policies where they are different from those of the Council for the purposes

of the consolidated financial statements,

Note 20. Commitments
$ 000
{(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings

Plant and equipment

Infrastructure

ICT

Other

Total commitments

These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year
Total payable

Sources for funding of capital commitments:
Unrestricted general funds
Total sources of funding

continued on next page
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2020

11,8642

496
305
102
12,548

12,548

12548

12,548
12,548

2018

43,958
384
3,050
752
2578
50,722

50722
50,722

50,722
50,722

Page 56 of 79

ltem 19

Attachment 1



IWER W8T

. —
Inner West Council el Satements 2020
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 20. Commitments (continued)
$ 000 2020 2018
(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments (2019 only)
a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting

date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year - 761
Later than one year and not later than 5 years - 2,588
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments - 3,349

Refer to Note 14 for information relating to leases for 2020.

Note 21. Contingencies

The following assets and labilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge
and disdlosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED
1. Guarantees

(1) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Coungil is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, named The Local
Government Superannuation Scheme — Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has been deemed to be a
‘multi-employer fund’ for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

- Assels are not segregated within the sub-group according 1o the employees of each sponsoring employer.

- The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not varied for each
sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring employer.

~ Benefits for employees of all sponscring employers are determined according to the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsoring employer.

- The same actuarial assumptions are cumrently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not borne by members).

Descnption of the funding amrangements.
Pooled employers are required to pay standard employer contributions and additional lump sum contributions to the fund.
The standard employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate

sufficent to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current standard
employer contribution rates are:

1.9 times member contributions for non-180)f

Division B Point Members; Nil for 180 Point Mermbers
Division C 2.5% salanes|
Division D 1.64 times member contributions|

The past service contribution for each Pocled Employer is a share of the total past service contributions of $40.0 million for
1 July 2019 to 30 June 2021, apportioned according to each employer's share of the accrued liabilities as at 30 June 2019,
These past service contributions are used to maintain the adequacy of the funding position for the accrued liabilities.
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Note 21. Contingencies (continued)

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between triennials,

Description of the extent fo which Council can be liable to the plan for other Council’s obligations under the terms and conditions
of the multi-empiloyer plan

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuarial risks asscciated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the assodiated gains and losses.

However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited crcumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full payment
of outstanding additional contributions. There is no provision for allccation of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Council.

There are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.

Council's expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting pericd is $1,484 986 .92,

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2020 is:

[Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
fssets ) 1695.2

Past Service Liabilities 1.773.2 95.6%
\Vested Benefits 1,757.5 96.5%

* exciuding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

Ceundil's share of that deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual amangement where assets and
liabilties are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised in
Council's accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment to correct
the deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

fnvestment retum 5.75% per annum
[Salary inflation 3.5% per annum
ncrease in CPI 2.5% per annum

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with the actuarnal
assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring employers in the Pocled Employers group.

(ii) Statewide Limited

Coundil is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local government.
Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on its past performance.
Council's share of the net assets or liabilities reflects Counci's contributions to the peol and the result of insurance claims
within each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30/8 this year may result in future liabilities or
benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.

(ili) StateCover Limited
Coundil is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover 1o the NSW local govemment industry and
specifically Council,
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Note 21. Contingencies (continued)

Council has a contingent kability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital base as a
result of the company's past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in accordance
with its licence requirements.

(iv) Other guarantees

Ceundil has provided no other guarantees other than these listed above.
2. Other liabilities

(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for
damages relating to its services.

Coundil believes thatitis appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect any material
liabilities to eventuate.

(1) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions Imposed by Council
Council has classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushiand.
As a result, where notified in writing by the various owners, Council will be required to purchase these land parcels.

At reporting date, reliable estmates as 1o the value of any potential liability (and subsequent land asset) from such potential
acquisitions has not been possible.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED
() Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or controlied up
to and including 30/6/08.
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Note 22. Financial risk management

Risk management

Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk and (4) interest
rate nsk.

The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign cumency risk.
Finandial risk management is carried out by Council's finance section under policies approved by the Coundil,
The fair value of Coundcil's financial assets and financial liabilties approximates their camrying amount.

A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Coundl's finandal assets and financial liabilites
recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Carrying value  Carrying value Fair value Fair value
$ 000 2020 2019 2020 2019
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 106,546 23,798 106,546 23798
Receivables 24,795 47,578 24,795 47,578
Investments
- 'Financial assets at amortised cost’ 213394 196,874 216,270 200,149
Fair value through profit and loss
Investments
- 'Held for trading' ) 1,097 1,139 1,097 1,139
Total financial assets A 345,832 269389 348,708 272,664
Financial liabilities
Payables 31,238 35,898 31,236 35898
Loans/advances 44659 9,099 44 659 9,099
Lease liabilities 387 - 367 -
Total financial liabilities 76,262 44 997 76,262 44 997

Fair value is determined as follows:

+ Cashand cash equivalents, receivables, payables — are estimated to be the canrying value that approximates market
value.

+ Borrowings and held-to-maturity investments — are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
mkt interest rates applicable to assets and Eabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.

« Financial assets dlassified (i) ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ — are basad upon quoted market prices (in active
markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation.

Council's objective is to maximise its retum on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital.

Council's finance area manages the cash and Investments portfofio with the assistance of independent advisors,

Coundl has an investment policy which complies with the Local Govemment Act 1993 and Minister's investment order 625,

This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an investment report is tabled before Councd on a monthly basis
setting cut the portfolic breakup and its performance as required by Local Govemment regulations.
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Note 22. Financial risk management (continued)

The nsks associated with the instruments held are:

» Price risk ~ the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether
these changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting simitar instruments traded in a market.

+ Interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

» Liquidity risk - the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

» Credit risk ~ the risk that the investment counterparty will not complate their obligations particular to a financial
instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council — be it of a capital or income nature.

Coundil manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high
credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Coundil also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash equivalents and investments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The impact on result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the price of investments held and interest
rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements were determined based on historical movements and economic
conditions in place at the reporting date,

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates

$ 000 Profit Equity Profit Equity
2020

Possible impact of a 10% movement in market values 16,983 16,983 (16,983) (1,698)
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 1,698 1,698 (1,668) (1,698)
2019

Paossible impact of a 10% movement in market values 27 645 27645 (27.645) (27 845)
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 2,765 2,765 (2,765) (2,765)
(b) Credit risk

Coundil's major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (i) user charges and fees.

Council manages the credit nsk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent
debt recovery procedures. Council also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors andfor regions.

The level of cutstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for acceptable
collection performance.

Coundil makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most non-rate debtors.
There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.
Coundil has determined that the impact of the worldwide pandemic in 2020 is still yet to be fully realised. However, the credit

risk of its outstanding receivables has increased and as a consequence, Council has reflected this in its calculation of its
provision of doubtful debts through the Estimated Credit Loss method.

Credit risk profile
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Note 22. Financial risk management (continued)

Receivables — rates and annual charges

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating to the
debts ~ that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and annual
charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

Not yet
$ 000 overdue
2020
Gross camying amount 1
2019
Gross camysng amowurnt -

<1year

4925

3514

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges
Coundil applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by AASB 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtors have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due,

1-2years 2-5years > Syears
overdue overdue overdue Total
1520 446 2078 8970
1,001 318 1483 6,406

The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2020 is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate forward-

looking information.

Not yet
§ Voo overdue
2020
Gross camying amount 7257
Expecied loss rafe (%) 0.00%
2019
Gross canmying amount 42522
continued on next page

0- 30 days 31 - 60 days 61 - 90 days > 91 days
overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
2525 1069 635 3058 14,545
2.00% 5.00% 10.00% 16.00% 4.52%
@7 168 744 466 44 885

8l
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Note 22. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are both subject to kquidity risk ~ the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Coundl manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer.
Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debt servicing requirements. Coundal manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous
to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashfiows.

The amounts disciosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-ease liabilites and therefore the
balances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Position due to the effect of discounting.

Weighted
average  Subject payable in: Actual
interest to no 1-5 Total cash carrying
$ 000 rate  maturity $1Yes vears 5 Yoors outflows values
2020
Trade/other payables 0.00% 17,885 13,350 - - 31,235 31,004
Loans and advances 4.45% - 818 4,603 39,238 44,659 44859
Lease liabilities 1.41% - 184 176 - 360 -
Total financial liabilities 17,885 14,352 4779 39,238 76,254 75,663
2019
Trade/other payables 0.00% 16,645 19,253 - - 35,898 35898
Loans and advances 516% - 3931 5868 - 9859 9,099
Total financial liabilities 16,645 23244 5,868 - 45.757 44,997
Page 83 of 79

82

ltem 19

Attachment 1



INER W8T

i Financial S 2020
Inner West Council inancial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 23. Material budget variations

Counal's onginal financial budget for 19/20 was adopted by the Council on 25th of June, 2019 and is unaudited.

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Statements must disdose the original budget adopted
by Coungil, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so that it is
able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that invariably occur throughout the year.

This note sets out the details of material variations between Council’s original budget and its actual results for the year as
per the Income Statement — even though such vanations may have been adjusted for during each quarterly budget review.

Material vanations represent those vaniances between the original budget figure and the actual result that amount to 10%
or more.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2020 2020 2020
$ 000 Budget Actual weemeee VIrianNce —-—-
REVENUES
User charges and fees 45948 32,693 (13,255) (29)% U

Free childcare for H2 FY20 (as per Commonwealth government policy in regards to pandemic response); closure of aquatic
centres during Q3 & Q4.

Other revenues 26,291 18,019 (8,272) B3N)% U
Rental income budgeted here; not as below

Operating grants and contributions 10,620 17,096 6,476 61% F
Childcare state & commonwealth grants to offset free childcare delivered in H2, FY20; Grants received for the accelerated
LEP/DCP Review from the Department of planning were not budgeted for.

Net gains from disposal of assets - 45215 45215 w F
Sale of Tempe Lands (investment properties).

Rental income - 7,017 7,077 “ B
Rental income not separately budgeted.

Joint ventures and associates — net profits - 101 101 - F
Share on interests not separately budgeted for.

EXPENSES

Borrowing costs 1,969 425 1,544 78% F
Interest on loan for the Ashfield Aquatic Centre Redevelopment was budgeted as opex; as the loan is purely for the
construction of this asset - and the asset is still in the process of being built; it was capitahized.

Depreciation and amortisation 33,080 29,27 3,809 1% F
Budget was built on not accurate assumptions - not matched to the forecast as per the asset system. This has been
addressed for FY21.

Net losses from disposal of assets 70 - 70 100% F
Sale of tempe lands (investment properties)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities 65,576 51,764 (13,812) @)% U

continued on next page Page 64 of 79
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Note 23. Material budget variations (continued)

2020
$ 000 Budget

As per reduction in accruals and accounts payable balances at year end.

Cash flows from investing activities (62,580)
Sale of Tempe Lands (investment properties)

Cash flows from financing activities (5,066)
Loan for Ashfield Aquatics Centre Redevelopment was budgeted in FY19.

84

2020
Actual

(4,446)

35430

Financial Statements 2020

2020
wevenen VAFANICE weevnes

58,134 93)% F
40,496 (799)% F
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures the following asset and liabiity classes at fair value on a recurring basis:

« Investment property
+ Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
*  Investments

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with vanous accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and kabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a level’ in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabdities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or kability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

continued on next page Page 66 of 79
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

(1) Assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at fair values

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 1 Levei 2 Levei 3
Date of Quoted  Signiticant  Significant
2020 latest prices in  observable  unobserv-
valuation  active mkts inputs  able inputs
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Investments
~ "Held for trading’ 006720 - 1,097 -
Total financial assets - 1,097 -
Investment property
Invesiment Propenty I00E20 - = -
Total investment property - - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Crown Land 300619 - - 97,858
Operatonal land Ie/1e - 396074 -
Communsty land IN0R1E - - 171,588
Land improvements - non-deprociatle 300618 - - 4,286
Land improvements — depreciable J00H1E - - 80,371
Car pars — non-depreciable 30018 - - 3547
Car parks - depreciable J00E/18 - - 7,686
Buldings 0018 - - 215647
Roads 300ene - - 158,103
Bridges 00418 - - 10,972
Foolpaths 00618 - - 82,284
Kerb and Gulter 3006119 - - 116,437
Other road assets IO0E18 - - 14177
Buk earthworks (nondepreciable) 300E18 - - 512,250
Sea walls A0E18 - - 26473
Wharves 00e - - 3.868
Stormwates drainage 300618 - - 121,666
Aquatic Centres IN019 - - 42453
Domestic Waste Vehicles 018 - - 2,357
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment - 396,074 1732332
continued on next page
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Total

1,087
1,097

97 856
396,074
171,588

4,786
80,371
3547
7.996
215647
158,103

10,972

82284
116,437

4477
512,250

26,473

3,868
121,666
42453

2357

2,128,406
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level3
Date of Quoted  Significant  Significant
2019 latest prices in  observable unobserv-
valuation  active mkts inputs  able inputs Total
Recuiring fair value measurements
Financlal assets
Investments
~ 'Held for rading’ 00618 - 1,139 - 1,139
Total financial assets _ = 1139 = 113
Investment property
Investment Propedy 00619 - 28489 - 28489
Total investment property - 28,489 - 28489
Iinfrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Crown Land 300615 - - 97 858 97 858
Opemtional land 3006/18 - 396,074 - 306,074
Conmursty land 300618 - - 166,900 166,900
Land imgrovements — non-deprecabie 00618 B - 4250 4250
Land improvements — depreciable 200618 - - 83 241 831241
Car parks — nondepreciable 300618 - - 3,547 3.547
Car parks — depreciable 00618 - - 8138 8138
Buidings 011G - - 245140 245140
Roads 00618 - - 161,787 161,787
Bridges 300618 - - 11,151 11,151
Footpaths 00818 B - 83478 83478
Kerb and Gutter AN0E1S - - 117,619 117,619
Other road assets 200618 - - 14,758 14,758
Buk earthworks (non-depreciable) 3006/18 - - 512,259 512,250
Sea walls I00RR - - 26,862 26 862
Wharvwes 018 - - 4,050 4,050
Storrmwater drainage ANOEAR - - 122,481 122,481
Aquatic Centres NGNS - - 43,900 43,500
Domestic Wasle Vehicles 200618 - - 2,740 2,740
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment - 396,074 1,710177 2,108 251

Note that capital WIP is not included above since it is camied at cost.

During the year, there we no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring far value
measurements.

(2) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. level 1 inputs) Council
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utiising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)

Buildings -Non-Specialised and Specialised

Buildings were valued by Scott Fullerton Valuations Pty Ltd, FAPI, Certified Practising Valuer, Registered Valuer No. 2144
as at 30 June 2018 using the fair value approach.

This approach estimated the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The buildings were physically inspected and measured as such maximised the use of observable inputs and minimised the
use of unobservable inputs. As such these assets were classified as having been valued using Level 3 valuation inputs.

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Community Land

Valuation of all Council's Community Land and Council managed land were based on the fand values provided by the
Valuer-General as at 30th June 2016. As these rates were not considerad to be observable market evidence they have
been classified as Level 3,

Operational Land
The valuation of Council's operaticnal land was undertaken as at 30 June 2018 by Scott Fullerton Valuations Pty Ltd. FAPI,
Certified Practicing Valuer, Registered Valuer No. 2144.

Operational has been valued at market value, having regard to the "highest and best use”, after identifying all elements that
would be taken into account by buyers and sellers in settling the price, including but not limited to

- The land's description and/or dimensions;

- Planning and other constraints on development; and

- The potential for allemative use.

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

All Other Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)

The cost approach has been utilised where the replacement cost was estimated for each asset by taking into account a
range of factors. Inputs such as estimates of pattem of consumption, residual value, asset condition and useful life required
extensive professional judgement and impacted on the final determination of fair value. As such these assets are classified
as having been valued using Level 3 valuation inputs.

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

(3) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Level 2 Level/3
Operational Remaining

$ 000 land assets Total
2019
Opening balance 395312 1,680,015 2,085327
Transfers from/(to) another asset class 827 - 827
Purchases (GBV) - 38,853 38853
Disposals (WDV) (85) (8,052) (8,117)
Depreciation and impairment - (23.474) (23.474)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - 13835 13835
Closing balance 396,074 1,7110177 2,106,251
2020
Opening balance 396,074 1,710177 2,106,251
Transfers from/(to) ancther asset class - 4710 4,710
Purchases (GBV) - 46,940 46,940
Disposals (WDV) - (3.601) (3.601)
Depreciation and impairment - (25,894) (25,894)
Closing balance 396074 1,732,332 2,128 408
(4) Highest and best use
All of Coundil's non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Note 25. Related party disclosures

Key management personnel

Financial Statements 2020

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responssbility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the counal, directly or

indirectly.

Mayor (1)

Councillors (14)

Chief Executive Officer (1)
Chief Operating Officer (1)
Deputy General Manager (1)

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$ 000 2020 2019
Compensation:

Short-lerm benefits 1,374 1,812
Post-employment benefits 53 86
Temnination benefils 338 107
Total 1,765 2,005

Note 26. Events occurring after the reporting date

Council is unaware of any matenial or significant ‘'non-adjusting events' that should be disclosed.

89
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Note 27. Statement of developer contributions
Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or improvement of amenities or
servicas) infrastructure in new release areas.
It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.
Summary of contributions and levies
as at 300619 as at 300620
Cantnbutians Cumudative —
recened during the year interest Expendture Intemal Held as o —
Openng eamed during Dorrowng restncted BOrowiIngs
$ 000 Batance Cosh Nos-cash i yeo year (foMrom asset dueipayabie) %
Roads 741 61 - 20 - - 822 - E
Traffic tacities 1,061 746 - 36 (308) - 1,535 -
Parking 80 - - 2 - - 82 - <
Open space 24521 10,355 - 704 (2,396) - 33,184 - %
Communty facilities 212 1,212 - 77 (46) - 3,965 - —
Open space and recreation 9,502 1,080 - 258 (1,169) - 9671 - +
Communtty services and faciites 2241 214 - 62 @ - 2510 - <
Transport and acoess 7453 191 - 201 (220) - 7625 -
Administration 102 218 - 4 - - 324 -
Plan peeparation 900 98 - 25 (153) - 870 -
S$7.11 contributions - under a pian 48323 14,175 - 1,389 (4,200) - 60,588 -
$7.12 levies — under a plan _ 4112 717 - 109 (1,116} - 3822 -~
Total $7.11 and S7.12 revenue under
plans 53,435 14,892 - 1,498 (5,415) - 64,410 -
S7 4 planning agreements 9777 3,361 9,089 61 (180) - 13,019 -
Total contributions ~ 63,212 18,253 _9.089 1,559 (5,595) - 77429 -
continued on nex! page . Page 71079
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Note 27. Statement of developer contributions (continued)
as at 3006/19
Cantnbutons
received dunng the year Intevest Expendifure
. ned durng

$'000 ?;ﬁ Cash Non-cash :',v)!' year
S7.11 Contributions — under a
plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 1 - Open Space and Recreation (former Leichhardt)
Effective 18 January 2005 8502 1,080 - 258 (1,169}
Total 9502 1,080 - 258 (1,169)
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 2 - Community Services and Facilities (former Leichhardt)
Effective 23 August 2005 2241 214 - 62 )
Total 2,241 214 - 62 4]
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 3 - Transport and A {former Leichhardt)
Effective 3 November 1999 7453 191 - 201 (220)
Total 7453 191 - 201 (220)
2004 S94 Developer Contributions Plan (former Marrickville)
Reads 408 - - 1 -
Trathc facities (178) - - - -
Open space ) 1,900 - - 50 -
Total 2,130 - -~ 61 -
2014 S94 Developer Contributions Plan (former Marrickville)
Traffic facilties 236 613 - 9 -
Open space 1209 9,123 - 366 (1,1865)
Communty facilties 1,149 1,133 - 35 (46)
Administration 102 218 - 4 -
Total 13,506 11,087 - 414 (1,211)
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER (former Ashfield)
Roads 33 61 ~ ] -
Traffic tacities 1,003 133 - 27 (308)
Parkng 80 - - 2 -
Open space 10,602 1,232 - 268 (1,231}
continued on nex! page .
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403
855
82
10,891

Page 720l 79

Item 19

Attachment 1



INER W8T

Council Meeting

27 October 2020
Inner West Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 27. Statement of developer contributions (continued)
as at 3006/19
Contnbutons

recatved dunng the year Inferest Expendture
000 t;‘:r:,:::z Cash Non.cash :7’::: a:':g
Communtty faciities 1573 79 - 42 -
Plan preparation 900 a8 - 25 (153)
Total 14,491 1,603 - 303 (1,692)
§7.12 Levies — under a plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER {former Marrickville)
sO4A Lavies 2390 255 - 60 (1,012)
Total 2,390 255 - 60 (1,012)
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER (former Ashfield)
Other 172 462 - 49 (104)
Total 1,722 462 - 49 (104)

92

Irternal
barrowng
(fo)front

Financial Statements 2020

235 2t 3006720
Cumubative
Held as méemal
resincieg Howowings
asset dueipayable)
1,604 -
870 -
14,795 ~
1,693 -
1,693 -
2129 -
2,129 -
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i Financial S 2020
Inner West Council inancial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 28(a). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts indicator Prior periods Benchmark
$ 000 2020 2020 2019 2018
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue exduding
capital grants and contributions less operating
expenses ' ? 931 0.38% 0.46% 3.24% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue exduding 242 513
capital grants and contributions '
2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all
grants and contributions 225417  g1.08% 87.01% 88.83% >60.00%
Total continuing operating revenue * 278,002
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions 224,881
Current kabilites less spedfic purpose liabilites 39,561 5.68x S0dx I >1.80x
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest 20,637
and depreciation/impairment'amortisation * !
Principal repayments {Statement of Cash Flows) 5,042 6.07x 8.84x G >2.00x
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 8,651 )
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 170,388 5.08% $40% 392% <5.00%
6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all
term deposits 241,546 11.53 7.42 8.05 >3.00
Monthly payments from cash fiow of operating 20,951 mths mths mths mths

and financing activites

1) Exdludes fair value increments on investment propertes, reversal of revaluahon decrements, reversal of impairment losses on
recaivables, net gaen on sale of assets and net share of mierests n wint ventures and assocates using the equity method and ncudes
pensioner rate subsides

2) Excludes imparment/revaluation decrements of IPPE, fawr value decrements on investmant properbes, net koss on dsposal of assets
and net loss on share of inlerests in joint vertures and assocales using the equity method

Page 74 of 79
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Inner West Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

End of Audited Financial Statements

End of Audited Financial Statements

94
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Inner West Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Note 28(b). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio
13

s
4
2 3
§3
2 3 This ratio measures Councl's
achievement of contaning
s aperaling expendiure within
046 0.38 WG v
o W M
2018 2019 2020

Benchmerk. — >0.00%
Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

| The Ox ing P Rato irs above the

0.00% 524 onit by the NS Office of Local
Goverrment.

I Ratio achieves benchmark

W Ratio s outside benctvnark

120 :]
| Purpose of own source
| operating revenue ratio

| Counal conbirmes to setsin s Own Source Operating

Rer rato weill shove the benchmark of 0%

e .

Benchirsark w >6000%
Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

3. Unrestricted eurront vatio’
?

To assess the adequacy of
I working capdal and its abéy o
| satisty cbiigations n the short

11 Ratio achieves benchmark
M Ratio s outside benchmark

Commentary on 2019/20 result l

| Councd has the capacty 10 meet 15 oblgatons after
&l memal and extemal restrictions ane exduded.
1C Un Cuxrent ratio continues % tack

| erm foe the
| of Counail

Benchmark: = >1.50x
Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practsice and Fimancial Reportng #28

continued on next page

95

abowe the benchemark of 1.5

1 Ratio acheves benchmark
BB Ratio is outside benchmark
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Inner West Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Note 28(b). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

4. Debt service cover ratio
8

6.61 Purpose of debt service | |

a MR w8 6.07 cover ratio

Ths rabo measures the
/ e s | | avatabiity of operatng cash to
N X ] service debt nCudng misrest
prncpal and leass payments

"

0 -

2018 2020

»
=
1
.

Banchmark: = >2.00x

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reposting #28

Commentary on 2019/20 result

2019/20 ratic  6.07x

Councl's dett Servion cover rato is well above the
benchmark ndcator of 2 and demonstrates t's
conlinued abilty to service 2's loars,

Ratio acheves benchmark

B Ratio & outside benclvnark

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage

Purpose of rates,

6 annual charges,
interest and extra

charges outstanding

392 il

To assess the mpact of
uncolected rates and annual
chanyes on Councils quidity and
the adequacy of recovery efforts

Benchmark: — <5.00%

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

6. Cash expense cover ratio
15

Commentary on 2019/20 resuilt

201920 ratio  5.08%

Whilst councal achvely pursues he recovery of Rates
and Extra Charges, the globai pandemmic of FY20 has
led 10 an increase in this rabo. Coundr expects this
rabo 1o remain steady m FYZ1 with improvements
beginning to ocoxr in FYZ22

Ratio acheves benchmark

I Ratio s outside benchmark

Commentary on 2019/20 result

. Purpose of cash
11.53 expense cover ratio 201920 ratic  11.53 mths
19
z 8.05
% 75 (172201 2]
3 ) | This m:’dty rafio ndcates the
Yol number of months a Counal can E §
(5 1 coninue paying Sor ts meediate | | COUNCs Unvesticied Current fafio s sbave e
. { ¢ : ! expenses without addimonad cash
3 w "0"
2018 2019 2020
- . pp— 1 Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Fnancial Reportng #28

96

W Ratio s outside benchmark
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SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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Inner West Council

Special Schedules
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Contents

Special Schedules

Permissible income for general rates

Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values

98

Specal Schedules 2020
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L [ 27 October 2020

i Spedcial Schedules 2020
Inner West Council
Permissible income for general rates
2020021 2020021 2020/21 2020021 201920 2019/20 201920 201920
Former Former Former Former Former Former
Ashfield Leichhardt Marrickville Inner West Ashfieid Leichhardt Marrickville inner West
§ 000 Hovia Council Council Counci Council Council Council Council Councit
Notional general income calculation *
Last year notional general
income yield a 28223 44,376 49 510 122,108 27,261 43 489 48 100 118,850
Plus or minus adjustments 2 b (1) (13) 43 29 349 69 113 531
Notional general income c=a+b 28222 44363 49,553 122,138 27,610 43,568 48213 119,381
Permissible income calculation
Or rate peg percentage e 2.60% 260% 2 60% 2.70% 270% 270%
Less expiring specal variation
amount g - - (1,541) (1.541) - : - -
Or plus rate peg amount imex{c+g) . B 1353 1248 _3135 - . T45 1176 1302 3223
Sub-total K=fcrgrheiry 28,956 45,516 49,260 123,732 28,355 44734 49515 122,604
Plus (or minus) last year's camy
forward total I 178 166 6 350 53 (144) 41 (50)
Less valualion objections
claimed in the previous year 4 — = - = (7) (48) - (55)
Sub-total n=(+m) 178 166 3 350 46 (192) 41 (105)
Total permissible income aTken 29,134 455682 49,266 124,082 28 401 44,542 49 556 122499
Less noticnal general income
yeld P 29 099 45 620 40 308 124,027 28223 44 376 49510 122,106
Catch-up or (excess) result g=o-p 35 63 (42) 56 178 166 46 390
Plus income lost due to valuation
objections daimed ¢ - - 57 57 . . . _
Less unused catch-up * s 3 - - 3 - - {40) (40)
Carry forward to next year * t=q+r+s 38 63 15 116 178 166 6 350
Notes

i) The notonal general mcome will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the cofresponding year. The statements are reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that
redate to prior years’ rates ncome.

) Adjustiments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase of dectease in land value occusring during the vear. The adjustments are calted ‘supplementary valuations’ as defined in
the Valuation of Land Act 1916

continued on nex! page . Page 30f 8
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i Special Sc 2020
Inner West Council Special Schedules

Permissible income for general rates (continued)

5) Unused calch-up amounts will be deducted if they are not caught up within 2 years. Usually councits will have a nominal carry foeward figure. These amounts can be adjusied for in setling he rates in 8
future year

%) Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceads the permissible income) require ministerial approval by order published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with section 512
of the Local Govemment Act 1993, The OLG will extract these amounts from Counal's Pemissible income for general rates Statement in the financial data retum (FDR) to administer this procass.

Page4of 8
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Council Meeting

27 October 2020
. Special Schedules 2020
Inner West Council '
Report on Infrastructure Assets
as at 30 June 2020
Estimated cost
Estimated cost to bring to the
to bring assets agreed level of 201920 201920 Gross Assetsin m‘xm"' of
to satisfactory service setby Required Actuai  Net carrying replacement gross
Asset Class Asset Category standard ' Council * maintenance * maintenance * amount  cost(GRC)
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 1 2 3 4 5
(a) Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values
Buildings  Buildings 24,488 24,468 11,238 8,887 275,539 375567  449% 301% 185% 60% 05%
Sub-total 24,468 24,468 11,238 8,887 275,647 375,567  449% 30.1% 185% 6.0% 0.5%
Roads Roads 64,892 64,892 16,787 15,687 158,068 283,885 16.7% 385% 220% 127% 101%
Traffic Devices 62 62 - - - 39,765 423% 435% 141% 01% 0.1%
Bridges 765 765 - - 10,972 15,995 187% S550% 206% 4.1% 07%
Footpaths 4144 4,144 1,464 1,520 82,260 119,861 263% 415% 287% 32% 03%
Other road assets 656 656 966 1,005 14177 21,758 230% 557% 183% 30% 00%
Bulk earthworks - - - - 512,259 512259 1000% 00% O00% 00% 00%
Kerb and gutter 29303 29303 - - 116,464 184,578 36% 447% 3BE% 133% 18%
Car parks - Depreciable 2,036 2,036 - - 7.986 11215  491% 285% 43% 136% 45%
Car Parks -Non Depreciable - - - - 3,547 3547 1000% 0% 00% 00% 00%
Sub-total 101,858 101,858 19,217 18,212 905,792 1,202,863  525% 239% 151% 57% 28%
Stormwater Stormwater drainage 8,065 8,065 1,820 1,546 121,665 178,106 83% 698% 174% 40% 05%
drainage Sub-total 8,065 8,065 1,820 1,546 121,666 178,106 8.3% 68.8% 174% 40% 0.5%
‘:Pe::'l;ul/ Swimming poois 656 656 1,252 2,000 42453 55124 831% 139% 18% 12% 00%
recr al . ; o - . o
assets Sub-total 656 656 1,252 2,000 42,453 55,124  831% 139% 18% 12% 0.0%
Other Seawalis 817 817 21 2 26473 37424 26% 537% 216% 10% 11%
infrastructure Wharves 838 838 - - 3,866 6,077 184% 467% 21.1% 138% 00%
assets Land Improvements - Depreciable 3,732 3,732 5,085 7512 80,363 114 901 422% 375% 171% 30% 02%
Land Improvements - Non Depreciable - - - - 4,286 4,286 932% 00% 68% 00% 00%
Sub-total 5,387 5,387 5,106 7,514 114,988 162,688  381% 40.6% 18.0% 29% 0.4%
TOTAL -ALL ASSETS 140,434 140,434 38,633 38,150 1,460,546 1,974,348  468% 30.3% 158% 53% 1.9%
1) “Satisfactory Standard” refers to the estimated cost 1or the renewal of condition 485 assets i @ the replacement value of condition 445 assels
2) The agreed service level is the estimated cost for renewal of condition 445 assets 1@ the replacement value of condition 485 assets
continued on nex! page . Page Sof 8
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2 S al Sched 2020
Inner West Council peaci ules

Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values (continued)
as at 30 June 2020

3) “Required Mantenance” for Roads and Stormwaler Drainage s the amount identified for mamtenance incuding related operational costs in Counal's budgel. For other Infrastruciure Assets it is the amount
identifed for maintenance nciuding related operational costs plus a minor adjustment to the Required Maintenance. For Buildings and Open Space/Recreational Assets ¢ s based on the recaiculated
201920 requirements.

@ “Actual Maintenance® is the amount of maintenance and related operational expenditure spent in the cument year 10 maintain Coundif's assets

Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’

1 Excellentivery good No werk required (normal maintenance)

2 Good Only minor maintenance work required

3 Satisfactory Maintenance work required

4 Poor Renewal required

5 Very poor Urgent renewal/upgrading required

continued on nex! page Page6of 8
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Inner West Council
Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2020

Amounts
$ 000 2020
Infrastructure asset performance
indicators (consolidated) *
Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio *
Asset renewals ? 7,493
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 21,684
Infrastructure backlog ratio *
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory
standard 140,434
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 1,460,546
Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 38,159
Required asset maintenance 38,633
Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level setby Council 140,434
Gross replacement cost 1,974,348

Indicator

34.56%

9.62%

98.77%

741%

Special Schedules 2020
Prior periods Benchmark
2019 2018
166.21%  64.09% >2100.00%
9.29% 10.27% <2.00%
9765%  78.33% >100.00%
7.35% 378%

{7} Al asset parformance indicators are calculated using dasses identified in the previous able.

1 Excludes Work In Prograss (WIP)

21 Assel renewals represent the repiacament andior refurbshment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance as opposed to

the acquisition of new assels (of the refurtashment of oid assets) that ncreases capacty/peformance

continued on next page
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Council Meeting
27 October 2020

Inner West Council

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)

as at 30 June 2020

Bulidings and infrastructure renewals ratio

16621
§
B 4
64 9
W
Benchmank = »= 100 00%

Source of benchimank: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 - Rato is outside benchmark

Infrastructure backlog ratio

1027

o %

Rar

Benchmank = <2.00%

Coinwariary of fe
Buildings and Omentary on Tealt

infrastiucture

renowals 1stio W0 K%

To assess he rate at
which these assels am
bang renewed rofatve

to fe rato at which they
3456 A depredaing

Rato achieves benchmark

Commentary on result

Infrastructure

backlog ratio 1920 a0 962%

The percantags has ncseased by
sporoadmaiely O 2% comparad ©
2015 Amough the 1atio was
This ra80 shows what expacted 10 be lower dus 10 T
propoction he backlog is ncrease of renewal works
against the ot value of undertaken, there are 591 some
a Counid's SOk in e anset condition
riastrucue ratingt which will feve an impact on
this ratio. Future asset condition
203wl improve e confidencs
e asset condilion ratings

Rato achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 - Ratio 5 outsde benchmark

Asset maintenance ratio
12¢

19 9765
7833
.l;
[ 4
2019
Benthimark. > 100.00%

Assat
9817 mamtenance rabo

Compares aciual vs.
requited annual asset
mactenance. Aratio
above 10 indctes
Coundl is investng
enough furds 10 stop
the ik asbuctus
backiog growing

Special Schedules 2020

Commentary on result

WN20mo  BATTS

The year-Grvyear rend shows that
this ratio is heading In the right
draction of beirg above the
benchmark

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark” Code of Accounting Practice and Fnancial Reporting #28 - Ratio is outside benchmadk

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level

138

Ratia %
"
-~
™

Cost to bring
assels to agreed
service level

This ratio pronides &
snapehot of he
proportion of
ouistanding renewsl
works companed 1o the
total value of assets
under Councils care
and stewardship

Commentary on result

W20mo  T11%

Percantage value is consistent with

FY19, noting 3 slight reduction
compaed to FY18
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21 October 2020

Minutes of Extraordinary Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Meeting held on 21
October 2020 via Microsoft Teams

Meeting commenced at 6.04pm

An Incamera session was held pnor to the meeting at 5.30pm for the Committee Members
to meet with members from the Audit Office and positive feedback was received.

PRESENT

. Audit Risk & Improvement Committee Members |
| Independent Member - Chair John Gordon ?
| Independent Member Heather Smith

| Councillor CIr Louise Steer )f
| Councillor Clr Lucille McKenna |
| Other attendees

| Acting Chief Executive Officer Elizabeth Richardson

'L Director Infrastructure Cathy Edwards-Davis ;
| Chief Financial Officer Daryl Jackson ?

| Senior Manager Business Excellence, Risk, WHS | Peter Livanes
| and Customer Service

| Acting Governance Manager - Minute Taker Katherine Paixao

| Engagement Partner, EY Mellissa Broadhead ‘
| Engagement Director, EY Paulette Pang ‘.
| Audit Office Caroline Karakatsanis
' Audit Office Rochele Antolin ‘

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF COUNTRY

The chairperson acknowledged the traditional owners of the Land on which the
meeting took place and paid his respects to elders past and present.

APOLOGIES:

Apologies were received from Emily Hodgson, Independent Member.
DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS:

John Gordon disclosed that he is on the ARIC of Central Coast Council.
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ﬂm m % % E @ ﬁ Extraordinary Audit, Risk and Improvement

Committee Meeting

21 October 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORTS

Committee take place in July 2021.
RECOMMENDATION (Cir McKenna OAM/CIr Steer)
THAT the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee:

1. Endorse the General-Purpose Financial Statements for the

year ended 30 June 2020 for submission to Council for |

adoption subject to processing the amendments agreed
with the Chief Financial Officer;

. Recognise the efforts of the Chief Financial Officer, the
Finance and Infrastructure teams to address the challenges
that have occurred in the last few years and previous
management letter findings and produce the accounts on
time and to plan;

. Thank the Audit Office of NSW for their ongoing support
and advice through the process; and

. Note to Council that the underlying financial performance |

when one off events are taken out is not as positive as is

apparent in single year results, and recommends Council |

consider that in future planning and in communicating the
current year's results.

Carried unanimously

ITEM PERSON DEADLINE
RESPONSIBLE

RIS1020 Item 1 Draft 2019/20 Annual Financial Statements.

Action:

That an independent review of the Audit, Risk and Improvement | Audit Office July 2021

Meeting closed at 7.32pm.

CHAIRPERSON - John Gordon
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